@ ik il B S 4 B AT R A ]

(BT AR )
(et RE: 104)

& #] 2018




CONTENTS
Bk

Corporate Information NRER 2
Profile of Directors and Senior Management EEREEEEABEN 4
Management Discussion and Analysis BREE RN 7

Directors’ Report 13
Corporate Governance Re 24
Independent Audi 33
Consolidated Profit or Loss 39
Consolidate of Profit or Loss and Ot 40
Consolida t of Financial Positio 41
Consolidat of Changes in 42
Consolidated 4 5% 44
Notes to the Fina 46
Five-Year Financial Sum TFEVBRHE 132

A F R AR Annual Report 2018 |1



CORPORATE INFORMATION

NS

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon) (Chairman)
Duong Ming Chi, Henry
Eav Guech Rosanna

Independent non-executive Directors

Lai Si Ming
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Lai Si Ming (Committee Chairman)
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent (Committee Chairman)
Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon)

Lai Si Ming

Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon) (Committee Chairman)
Lai Si Ming

Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline

Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Eav Guech Rosanna
Cheng Ka Chung

COMPANY SECRETARY
Cheng Ka Chung
AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
9/F, Leighton Centre

77 Leighton Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

2| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

4
HiTEE

B Gl BRE) (FE)
BEAE

BatE
BUFHTESE

RS
F AT

ERESE

BER(ZREELE)
IR
FER

FEMF(ZRETE)
B (BB HRRE)
25

F AT

REESE

BERIEBRE) (ZE52LE)
e H
IR

Rig=

%BatE
M8

NEikE
LIS
1% 1 6

ERE(BR) EAMEBAARAF
L ES=0a]

BB

51 9% /2

BT

BIE 09

1R 2R

0

1

§ g

SHe
i

EHARAE



PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRAR

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
19th Floor

9 Des Voeux Road West

Hong Kong

BANKERS

United Overseas Bank Limited
Bank of Shanghai, Jingan branch

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.asiacommercialholdings.com

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong : 104

i,
o]
il
&5
_H}
A
S

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NCIEYE!

IRfBF RS E

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

R BP R E N E
PEWERKERAA
aBE

B 2R ARER1835E
SR 0221E
B ET
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

SETETEEEIME
B

{58 P95k

19%E

IRTT

RERTARAA
EBRITE AT

2~ afAnt
www.asiacommercialholdings.com
BRI SE

BB ERFAT 104

Annual Report 2018 |3



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEhEEBEERASEN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Eav Yin (alias Duong Khai Nhon), aged 78, is the founder of
the Company and a member of Chaozhou Committee of Guangdong
Province of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(EHRE WM EZ 2) and was appointed as _an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company on 22nd November 2006. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a Cambodian
Chinese and prior to his establishing of a Hong Kong company in 1968
as an importing agent for watch distribution business in Cambodia, had
extensive experience of distributing watches in Cambodia and Vietnam.
Mr. Eav Yin is the father of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna and Mr. Duong
Ming Chi, Henry and the spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Eav Yin is a director and a controlling
shareholder of Century Hero International Limited, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry, aged 55, was educated at the
University of Southern California. Mr. Duong has more than 30 years
of experiences in the watch branding and retailing industries. He
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 7th July
2011. Before that, he was appointed as the Executive Director from
the listing of the Company in 1989 and subsequently resigned on
31st August 1996 to pursue his personal career. Mr. Duong is a son
of the Chairman, Executive Director and controlling shareholder of
the Company, Mr. Eav Yin and is the elder brother of Ms. Eav Guech
Rosanna, who is an Executive Director of the Company.

Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna, aged 48, holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration Degree in Marketing from Adelphi University in the
U.S.A. She is currently the chief executive officer of Time City (Hong
Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. Before joining the Group
in 1993, she worked in a major international US Bank specializing in
local corporate companies. Ms. Eav is a daughter of the Chairman,
Executive Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr. Eav
Yin and is the sister of Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry, who is an Executive
Director of the Company. She was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 21st August 2015.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming, aged 60, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and an associate member of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 8th August 1998. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lai was
elected as the Vice Chairman, General Practice Division of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors during the years from 2001 to 2003. Mr.
Lai has been practicing as a professional surveyor since 1983 and has
considerable experience in the property field. Mr. Lai is an existing
independent non-executive director of Guorui Properties Limited
which was listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 7th
July 2014. Mr. Lai holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
from Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lai held directorship as
independent non-executive director of The Sun’s Group Limited during
the years from 2002 to 20083.

Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline, aged 48, graduated with LLB (Hons)
at King’s College, London University, UK in 1992, and was admitted
to both the UK Bar (Middle Temple, UK) and the Hong Kong Bar in
1993. She was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the Company on 16th December 2006. She is also a member of
the nomination committee, the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent, aged 48, has 27 years experience in
accounting and auditing and is the sole proprietor of a firm of Certified
Public Accountants practicing in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee is a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He holds a Master Degree in Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 16th December 2006. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and also a member of the
audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheng Ka Chung, aged 50, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Cheng
has more than 20 years experience in finance and accounting. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy and a Master of Science
degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Cheng is the Finance Director and Company Secretary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SHEAERE )Y@l
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS e
2018 2017 Change
—ZE-N\F —E—tF L0
HK$ million HK$ million %
BEET BEBT

Operations
Revenue 991 17
Profit attributable to owne BN RIREA A2
the Company 63 103
Earnings per share 4.02 HK cents '~ 102
4.027& 1l
Interim divide d paid - =
Final divide: after
the end o g period 20 - N/A
iE A
Special di sed after
the end ng period - N/A
i@ A
Change
25
$ million %
BEET
Financial position
Total assets (5)
Equity attributable to owners o NAFFE AR
the Company 430 17
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

The Group’s revenue for the year amounted to HK$991 million
which was 17% higher than HK$850 million of last year. The “Sale
of watches” segment continued to play a key role this year which
increased its revenue by 17% to HK$983 million. Average same store
sales in this year in Hong Kong increased by 61% and decreased by
7% in China respectively as compared with last year. On the other
hand, the business in the “Properties leasing” segment remained stable
and derived a revenue of HK$9 million during the year.
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As at As at
31st March 31st March
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Beijing 1t 2 3
Shanghai fapis 3 3
Shenyang 2 (5 - 1
Chengdu X A 2 2
Hong Kong &5 1 1
8 10

Financial Review fil 7% [0 3

Results review: Ey )]

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group’s revenue amounted
to HK$991 million, representing an increase of 17% (2017: increase
of 2%) from HK$850 million in last year. The increase was mainly
driven by the substantial increase in revenue in Hong Kong of 33%
as compared with last year. On the other hand, the revenue in China
dropped slightly by 4% in this year. Gross profit margin maintained at
22% which was the same as last year despite the fact that provision for
obsolete inventories was made as a result of the closure of a shop in
China and the termination of the business relationship with retailers in
China of a brand owned by the Group.

Distribution costs amounted to HK$172 million in this year which was
comparable to those of last year as the reduction in rental expenses
was offset by the increase in staff related expenses and entertainment
charges as a result of the increase in sales activities. Administrative
expenses increased slightly by 10% to HK$32 million as compared with
last year was due to the increase in staff related expenses and bank
charges as a result of the increase in sales activities.

RS AR AR R

=
il

BHE-T-—\F=-A=+—BLFE AEEE%E
Uz A /991,000,000 It * 18 £ 7 4F #)850,000,000/%
T EFIT%(ZT—tF : LA2%) c R EFAETERZEH
B W A B EE I KR EF33%FT A8 - B—F
B FREERARFEERMTERI% - HASE LR
BRI EEM R RIERAEBREES RE2TETE
EzAXAERMHRAMGT ERE HEERARDES
22% - B K AR o

AN4EE 5 $8AK AR £172,000,000/8 7T » B2 EFHEE 0 I
TR ER A EHEEEBIE NS B E TR
B BN EE B RIS ANFTIRSE - T B AR AFLLE -
Bl ER {12 110% 232,000,000 7T * 1t Jh R S & &S
N BHE THEBES E RRITHRBIEMNATER °

Annual Report 2018 |9



78 B2 B AR
e EFIFL

|_I_| —
Em EE8L
Timecity
Beijing Macau Center
Corum Boutique

TEE%%EiﬁE
= R F’EJEPIL

jj._.l: —rﬁ

Timecity
Beijing Macau Center
Rolex Boutique

fﬁE%%iﬁﬁ
b= '? pEd F‘EJEPIL

Timecity
Beijing Macau Center
Cartier Boutique

TEE%%W
b= R F‘EJEPIL

/Fﬁ..‘l*] /ﬁ =5 E

Timecity
Beijing Macau Center
Panerai Boutique




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Valuation gains on investment properties amounted to HK$9 million in
this year were mainly derived from properties in Hong Kong.

Finance costs dropped to HK$2 million in this year because of the
decrease in borrowings.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31st March 2018, the Group’s total cash balance (including short-
term deposits and structured deposits) amounted to HK$92 million
(81st March 2017: HK$26 million). The increase was mainly due to
the reduced inventory level as a result of the tightening control over
inventory. Gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as a ratio of total
borrowings over total equity, was 3% as at 31st March 2018 (31st
March 2017: 26%).

Foreign exchange risks

The Group views its main currencies as Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and Swiss Francs. The Group monitors its exposure to foreign
exchange risks and, when it considers necessary and appropriate, will
hedge its foreign exchange risks by using financial instruments.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR [@B51:m MK D ifr

Prospect

The Group continued to improve its operating results and achieved a
net profit of HK$63 million in this year as compared with a net profit of
HK$31 million in last year.

The Group operates 8 stores in Hong Kong and China. The Group
remained focus on its core stores and has streamlined their operating
costs during the year and will continue to do so with a view to further
enhance the cost efficiency of each store. The overall sentiment in
the luxury retail business was improving in Hong Kong and but that in
China still remained stagnant due to the slowdown of the economic
growth in China and the change of spending pattern of the mainland
tourists and the continuation of anticorruption drive in China. Looking
ahead, the improving sentiment in Hong Kong as a result of the
increase in tourist and local spending will be a positive sign for the
Group’s business in Hong Kong.

Apart from the “Sale of watches” segment which continues to be the
core business of the Group, the Group is also developing its business
in the “Properties leasing” segment in which the key investment
properties are located in Hong Kong. In June 2018, with a view to
enhance and diversify its existing portfolio, the Group has acquired a
renowned residential flat in London.

The Group is determined to rebuild its financial strength and confidence
to improve its business and take a cautious approach in its future
expansion.

On behalf of the Group, we sincerely thank for the kind and positive
support of our shareholders, customers, suppliers and associates.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the
financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the
financial year are set out in Note 17 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2018 and the
state of the Company and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 41 to 42.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2018
is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 7 to 12.

Description of possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing can be found in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 7 and 12 of this annual report. An analysis
of the Group’s performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is set out in section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 and 12 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars of the share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 30 to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Details of the dividends are set out in Note 12 to the financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in Note 14 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBRS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties during the year are
set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders and
movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of Company’s listed securities during the year.

BORROWING

Details of the bank borrowings are set out in Note 26 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the Group’s largest supplier
contributed approximately 64% of the total purchases for the year
and the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
top five suppliers represented approximately 99% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Since the customer base of the Group is very wide, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are approximately
13% of total sales during the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years is set
out on page 132.

14| Asia Commercial Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, subject to the statues, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/
her office. The Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors of the Group.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Eav Yin (Chairman)
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lai Si Ming
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent

Mr. Lai Si Ming and Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna shall retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract
with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be and were recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

EFERTBITRASRKRIRM - l8RRMNKEES D

g

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—B ARAEELRTETH
ABEARRSHEEMAREE (EXR(EH LR
ey (I35 5 R B E 501 1) SEXVER) ety - E R
SEHFETEE  MRIEEF LB R EXVEET R
8N B EBMA RN R R R A m MOAR (BIER
BEFRME R 2 ZEHRXBEREFLIRAES
ZHERRORR)  RIREE S R E IRPI F352(F R E
AIAMENAATHREZECMIEETERAR
SRAERARES ETRR (T EmRAD) M+ mE
ZLEWETAEZETESRSOREST A ([RLET
D) EBAARR LB ER LORRIT -

R2ASRMREBERRDER

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of

shares of aggregate

HK$0.2 each/ interests to

underlying total issued

shares held share capital

BESR BESRGEE BT

Name of Directors Nature of interest 0.2 TEER RA< 4R
EEnE ERME HEROGHE BRESH
%

Mr. Eav Yin B ks Note ff7F 886,922,473 56.60
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna B gL Personal & A 1,624,272~ 0.10
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry BHELE Personal & A 4,089,600" 0.26
Mr. Lai Si Ming 8B Rk & Personal & A 366,625* 0.02
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline FAGF L+ Personal & A 366,625* 0.02
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TiEKEEE Personal & A 366,625* 0.02

Note: Among the 886,922,473 shares in which Mr. Eav Yin is deemed to have
interests under the SFO (a) 70,688,600 shares are personal interest of Mr.
Eav Yin of which 2,933,000 shares are share options, (b) 5,929,200 shares
are held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung (spouse of Mr. Eav Yin), (c) 582,421,337
shares by Century Hero International Limited, (d) 1,864,800 shares by
Debonair Company Limited, (e) 102,267,728 shares by Goodideal Industrial
Limited, (f) 2,550,672 shares by Hexham International Limited, (g) 2,846,536
shares by Goodness Management Limited and (h) 118,353,600 shares
by Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation (as a trustee of Eav An Unit
Trust). Century Hero International Limited, Debonair Company Limited,
Hexham International Limited, and Goodness Management Limited are
wholly owned and Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav
Yin. Eav An Unit Trust is a discretionary trust of which Mr. Eav Yin is the
founder, the beneficiaries include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife and their children.
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= All the 4,089,600 shares are personal interest of Mr. Duong Ming Chi,
Henry.

All the interests are related to the share options held by the respective
Directors.

B All the 1,624,272 shares are personal interest of Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna.

Save as disclosed herein and in the section headed “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME”, as at 31st March 2018, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required to
be recorded in the register kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age had been
granted or had exercised any rights to subscribe for any equity or debt
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the year ended 31st March 2018, which may also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

During the year, the above-mentioned connected transactions
are exempted from reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholder’s approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed herein the section headed “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS”, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”).

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been expired on 20th September
2012 and no new share option scheme has been adopted thereafter.
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The Company has issued 146,800,000 and 34,170,000 share options
to the qualifying grantees to subscribe for ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 of which the
exercise prices were HK$0.394 per share and HK$0.263 per share
respectively. Upon the completion of the share consolidation and rights
issue in January 2013 and February 2013, the original numbers of
issued share options were adjusted from 146,800,000 and 34,170,000
to 43,056,440 and 10,022,061 respectively. In addition, both the
exercise prices and the numbers of share options have been adjusted
according to the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As of 31st March 2018,
the outstanding amount of share options was 15,559,565.

As at 31st March 2018, the Directors and employees of the Company

R-E——F=ZA=+—HE-Z—F+A=-+~X
B ARARBE-_ST_FERENE ReERE
T 4 ¥£17146,800,00019 }234,170,00013 Al RE AR
AIERE A B0.02B Ty L@k BARE  EITFEE
DR AFA0.3947 T K0.263/BL - —E—=F—AK
ZE—=ZF-AZBRMAEHRERTHKE  RE T
B AXRE 2 B 9 Bl H1146,800,00017 £234,170,0001% & A
43,056,44017 }2.10,022,06115 ° ttoh - RIFE-TT — 4
AR BRENTEEREE  MELEIEL
FAE-N=F-NF=ZA=1+—0 HARTEZER
# /15,559,565(7 °

EA::—;*J\¢7H7+ B ALBEEREIRS

had the following interests in share options to subscribe for shares UNTREBEARN_ZEZ-_FRBREFSAZTEERE
of the Company (market value per share at 31st March 2018 was &%Z%Hﬂgifg\ DENNFTZEG (R —N\F

HK$0.34) granted for a nominal consideration under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme of the Company. The share options are unlisted. Each
share option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary

ZH=d= Eltme%f’iT%Z%O.Mi%ﬁ) o LIBBES
FEMES B RBAEATHEARBALF2E
TR E B Z R o

share of HK$0.2 of the Company.

No. of shares

No. of share No. of acquired on
options share exercise of
outstanding No. of share options share No. of share
at the options forfeited options options Period Period during
beginning of granted during during outstanding during which which share
the year during the year the year at year end share options options are Exercise
3 the year Eh ERff Ex are vested exercisable price per
Directors HRTEN ERBLH &2 EREER HATEN  Date of grant 28R i share
2z ERRgE BRE%R BRESA ZBh%E BRERR REAH BRENER BRENIR SROFE
Mr. Eav Yin 2,983,000 - - - 2,933,000 31stMarch 2011~ 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
FCxs E-f 30 th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
=f=t-8 I3 ﬁ A=fRZ Z5-EZf3TRE
I35 EZAtH —5--FZR31H
Mr. Lai Si Ming 366,625 - - - 366,625 31stMarch 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 o HK$1.344
BERLE 5--F 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134457
ZR=1-AR ’?f’ﬁ’ﬁ?ﬁi “F- ’-”F A=TRZ
% A _ﬂ \E —7— g H"E
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline 366,625 - - - 366,625 31stMarch 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344
E2 il e E-f 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134487
=R=t-A :2—_5 A=A “E-R=TR%
-5 M$ A=TH 7§:*¢EHE‘E
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent 366,62 - - - 366,625 31stMarch 2011 30th March 2012 to 30th March 2012 to HKS1.344
FERRE 3 30th March 2016 30th March 2021 134487
ZR=+-A S-ZEZR-TRZ EZACtRE
ZE-7FzR=78
Employees 13,086,515 - (1,530,825) - 11,526,690 3fstMarch 2011 30th March 2012 o 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344
81 E--f 30th Ma ch 2016 30 h March 2021 134487
e H?+Ez CR-EZRITRE
ZE-EZACT b
Total 17,099,390 - (1,539,825) - 15,559,565
it
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The share options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the date of grant
of the share options on 31st March 2011 and 26th October 2011 were
HK$0.39 and HK$0.26 respectively.

During the year, 1,539,825 share options were forfeited under the 2002
Share Option Scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Scheme”
and “Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights”,
no equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year, was the Company
or any of its associated corporations a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the Directors or their spouses or children under 18 years of
age was granted any right to subscribe for any shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any of its associated corporations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in the businesses which compete or are
likely to compete with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the
Listing Rules.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

In addition to the share options granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme as disclosed herein, on 13th September 2010, the
shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a share
award plan (the “Share Award Plan 2010”). The Share Award Plan
2010 is a ten-year discretionary share award and ownership plan. It is
primarily for encouraging or facilitating the holding of shares by those
selected employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new shares are or
will be awarded. The Directors will make use of the plan to award new
shares to those selected employees of the Group on suitable terms as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed herein, the Company had no other outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 31st
March 2018 and there was no issue or exercise of any such other
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31st March 2018, so far as is known to any Directors and chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, which fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
the Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register kept by
the Company or required to be notified under Section 336 of the SFO:

o[ j iR 58 35 ~ BEARIE - 50 AR & M o) 4 Uh i& Wl

RE-TT - FEREIMINNE TRREMKE -
RZZE-ZFAA+=8 KNRFRERERA KD
EEEE ([ REHE (ZF—FF) ) - KR
HE(ZE-TF) N FHNBERG R EE E
Z EEBBRENZEHEEEEE RS ERSHE
ZAt &l 2 A EEE RS FAR D - W EBERH R
- EEZREMAZE  UAENGRIEREERE
BRAEEFHERZ RENE D

FENEBREGEL - 1760 - THERW - BXAE
BN RZF— NF=ZA=1+—BARA WL ERITE
AialEE S R RRELEOEDN - UERE
N BETRTREMZEREMGARBES  BR
R RIS AR -

BRARDZEKRIES

R \F=A=+—R EREAARAEERE
EERABHA  THALGRAEEREETRA
BB RAR A2 D RARBRD B EA A AR %
(TR AE9650 3 5+ 1258 28 4 HA 55 15 ) XV ER B2
3P 7 X AMARTBE  REENARANEE
2 R ok B A R DI BB36 /R T A 2
SRR -

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.2 each/

underlying Approximate

shares held percentage of

BEES issued share

FR0.2%8 T capital

Name of shareholder Notes TERS HERTRE

RRE®B Bt 3 HEARDHE BRBEDL

%

Mdm. Lam Kim Phung e B Z+ 886,922,473 56.60

Century Hero International 2 B BR A PR A A 2 582,421,337 37.17

Limited

Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Chanchhaya Trustee Holding 3 118,353,600 7.55
Corporation Corporation

Convenhills Limited Convenhills Limited 4 128,510,486 8.20

Goodideal Industrial Limited Goodideal Industrial Limited 5 102,267,728 6.53
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Notes:

1. These shares include 5,929,200 shares held by Mdm. Lam Kim Phung and
the remaining 880,993,273 shares represent the interest held by Mr. Eav
Yin, spouse of Mdm. Lam Kim Phung, whose interests are disclosed in the
above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures”.

2. Century Hero International Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is
also a director of this company.

3. Chanchhaya Trustee Holding Corporation is trustee of Eav An Unit Trust, a
discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Eav Yin, his wife
and their children.

4. Convenhills Limited is owned equally by the estate beneficiary of late
Mr. Leong Lou Teck, Mr. Leong Lum Thye, Miss Leong Yoke Kheng and
Mr. Leong Siew Khuen.

5. Goodideal Industrial Limited is 87% owned by Mr. Eav Yin who is a director
of this company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2018, there were no other
person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company as having an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there is no restriction against such right under
Bermuda law.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 153 employees in the Group as at 31st March 2018. The
Group offers competitive remuneration packages to employees in line
with market trends. Incentives such as discretionary bonuses and
shares under share award plan are offered to motivate employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

Environmental policies

The Group puts great emphasis on environmental protection and
sustainable development. The conscientious use of resources and the
adoption of best practices across the Group’s businesses underlie its
commitment to safeguarding the environment. The Group encourages
environmental protection, complies with environmental legislations
and promotes awareness towards environmental protection to its
employees. Several measures have been implemented by the Group in
order to promote environmental protection, including, among others:

(i) promoting energy saving by encouraging its staff to switch off
all air-conditioners and lightings before leaving the office, and to
utilise the timer-control function of all air-conditioning systems;

(i) reducing energy consumption by using energy-saving light bulbs
in the corridors and the reception area of its offices;

(iiiy promoting recycling by placing recycle bins next to printers for
collecting used papers for reusing and recycling purposes, and by
encouraging two-sided printing and/or the use of scratch papers;

(iv) reducing the use of disposable products by, for example,
cancelling the distribution of plastic bags in office; and

(v) reducing water consumption by replacing all water taps by
automatic faucets in offices.

The environmental, social and governance report will be uploaded
within three months after the publication of the annual report of the
Company to the websites of both The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and the Company.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable assets of
the Group and the Group strictly complies with the labour laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and regularly reviews the existing staff
benefits for improvement. The Group provides good quality services to
the customers and maintains a good relationship with them. The Group
is able to establish trusting and long-standing business relationships
with the major customers. The Group also maintains effective
communication and develops long-term and stable relationships
with its suppliers. During the year, there was no material dispute or
disagreement between the Group and its customers or suppliers.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year ended 31st March 2018 and up to the date of
this report, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the mainland China, Switzerland and Hong Kong that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Donations

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donations.

AUDITOR

The financial statement for the years ended 31st March 2016 and 2017
were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited has changed its name to Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited (“Crowe”). Accordingly, the independent auditor’s report is
now signed under the new name.

The financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2018 were
audited by Crowe. A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Crowe as auditor
of the Company.

EXPRESSION OF GRATITUDE
The Board would like to take this opportunity to express its gratitude
to all staff members, shareholders, bankers, customers, suppliers and

professional advisors for the sincere support to the Group.

By Order of the Board

Eav Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th June 2018

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE8RS

ESHERRZER

RBE-Z-N\F=ZRA=T—HILFERBEAFR
RB - ARECETHEUAEEBEERZENT
R It REBNAARBERIER -

tEE
FR-EERBIEHEASER -
1% $1 60

REEZZE—AR-_ZT—tFF-_A=-F+—HIEFE
Mz iEREDHEEEE (BB STMELKAME
RN REITEZ °

EHEE(BR)BHMEBMERARZ EXABE
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited® 2% ACrowe (HK)
CPA Limited - 1" 3% 18 B 435 A& - Bl BT %
HEREBEATEHEE -

RBE-ZT-N\F=ZRA=+—RHILFEH[BZHTBHR
ROVABEEELETER BEEEEERRAZH
BEVRZE R SEABEROBRERBFRAS LIRS

Bt
EEgEtHBERmBERT BRR  ERRT K

FHEmkEEREN B ARAREEZ B
BUARY) 2 B -

AEEEMm
B
FE

BE T -NFRAZ++LH

Annual Report 2018 |23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PREIBWS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices by emphasising a quality board of directors,
sound internal control, transparency and accountability to all the
shareholders of the Company.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended
31st March 2018 except for the deviation from the code provisions
A.1.1, A.4.1 and D.1.4 and those discussed below:

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted by private
act, the Asia Commercial Holdings Limited Company Act, 1989 of
Bermuda (the “1989 Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act,
director holding office as executive chairman or managing director
shall not be subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting as provided in the Bye-Laws. As the Company is bound by
the provision of the 1989 Act, at this time, the Bye-Laws cannot be
amended to fully reflect the requirements of the Code. As such, a
special resolution was passed at the special general meeting held on
28th March 2007 to amend the Bye-Laws of the Company so that, inter
alia, (i) every director (save for a director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) of the Company shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years; (ii) a director may be removed
by an ordinary resolution in general meeting instead of a special
resolution; and (iii) any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional director shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, instead of the next annual general meeting.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Eav Yin,
the Chairman of the Board has confirmed to the Board that he will
voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general meeting of the
Company at least once every three years in order for the Company to
comply with the Code, provided that being eligible for re-election, he
may offer himself for re-election at the annual general meeting. The
Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive officer
is divided between the remaining executive directors.

Code provision A.1.1 provides that regular board meetings should be
held at least four times a year but only three regular meetings were
held during the year instead. The Board will improve this meeting
arrangement to comply with this provision in the future.

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are not less
exacting than those in the Code.

Code provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should clearly understand
delegation arrangements in place. Company should have formal letters
of appointment for directors setting out the key terms and conditions of
their appointments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has not entered into any written letters of appointment
with its Directors. However, the Board recognises that (i) the Directors
have already been subject to the laws and regulations applicable to
directors of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, including the Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to
act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all
of them are well established in their professions; and (iii) the current
arrangement has been adopted by the Company for several years and
has proven to be effective. Therefore, the Board considers that the
Directors are able to carry out their duties in a responsible and effective
manner under the current arrangement.

The Board will continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that
business activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper and prudent manner. The Company is committed to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices by emphasising a
quality board of directors, sound internal control, transparency and
accountability to all the shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code for securities transactions by
Directors of the Company (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all the Directors of the Company, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code and the Code of Conduct during the year
ended 31st March 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s business, strategic decisions and financial
performance. The management of the Group is responsible for the
day-to-day management and operation of the respective individual
business unit.

The Board currently comprises three Executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 4 and 5 of this annual report.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
opinions raised by the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional accounting experience and
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. A balanced
composition of Executive and non-executive Directors also generates
a strong independent element on the Board, which allows independent
and objective decision making process for the best interests of the
Company.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of them to
be independent.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group. During the year, 3 Board regular meetings
were held. Moreover, 2 Audit Committee meetings, 1 Remuneration
Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee meeting were

ARARERESRBIIIFNTEERE LTHRAIES.13
GREBISOMBL 2 ERERER  MARFR
RBBEILIFATEEYBBEIAL -

EEZeEHRE UBRIAREZEBREBRR -
REE  BEEFGRTREHNSHE - I AFEER
IMAREREEEEHE  —RAFHEEEEER—KR

REZREES ZEeRSEF 2B HFELET

held during the year. The individual attendance of Directors in these IR
meetings was set out below:
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director meetings meetings meetings meetings
EEHA Exgg ERZEEEEE FMZEEEE; REZEEER
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Eav Yin Bk E 3/3 N/ATT i 11 11
Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRELE 3/3 N/A3E A N/ATE A N/AE A
Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna Bt 3/3 N/A 38 A N/ATE A N/ATE A
Independent non-executive BIFHTES

Directors

Mr. Lai Si Ming BB EAE 3/3 2/2 11 11
Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline FREFLL 3/3 2/2 1/1 11
Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TERGE 3/3 2/2 11 1/1

Mr. Eav Yin, the Chairman of the Company, is the father of Mr. Duong
Ming Chi, Henry and Ms. Eav Guech Rosanna who are both Executive
Directors of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there is no
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board or between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Eav Yin while the function of the chief executive
officer is divided between the remaining Executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code provides that non-executive director
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

During the year, the non-executive Directors of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and re-election at annual general meeting
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are not less exacting than
those in the Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has set up a nomination committee on 1st April 2012. The
principle duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships, assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the
Chairman and the chief executive.

The Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung,
Vincent. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Eav Yin.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1 meeting to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors, appoint of new
executive director and make recommendations to the Board on the
re-appointment of directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant
to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, culture and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable
objectives to implement the Policy.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee on 15th July 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference have been updated during the
year in line with the revised Corporate Governance Code requirement
effective from 1st April 2012. The Remuneration Committee’s role is
to make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for Directors and senior management and to ensure that
they are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the Group’s
overall performance, having regard to the interests of shareholders. The
principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management as well as reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time.
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The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Eav Yin and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat
Cheung, Vincent. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee
Tat Cheung, Vincent.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting to
advise the Board on the Group’s overall policy and structure of the
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No Director or
any of his/her associates may be involved in any decisions as to his/her
own remuneration. Based on the review and discussion at the meeting,
the Remuneration Committee recommended to the Board to approve
the Group’s overall policy and structure of the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st March 2018, the total remuneration of the
auditors of the Group for statutory audit services and other services
is HK$1,230,000 (2017: HK$1,180,000) and HK$329,000 (2017:
HK$314,000) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board set up the Audit Committee on 1st January 1999 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deal with its authority
and duties. The Audit Committee’s role is to review the Group’s
financial reporting, internal controls and corporate governance issues
and to make relevant recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lai Si Ming, Ms. Wong Wing Yue,
Rosaline and Mr. Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lai Si Ming.

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and adopted with
reference to the Code and “A Guide for the Formation of an Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Audit Committee is required, among other things,
to oversee the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope, extent and
effectiveness of internal control of the Group, to review accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisors as it determines is necessary and to perform
investigations.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year to review,
among other things, the interim and annual financial statements. Based
on the review and discussion at the meetings, the Audit Committee
recommended to the Board, among other things, to approve the interim
and annual financial statements of the Group and to review the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company.

TRAININGS OF DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the Company has arranged training for all the Directors
with a view to refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year, the
Company Secretary of the Company has complied with the relevant
training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there is no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements where were prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. A statement by
the auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages
33 to 38 of this annual report. As far as the Board is aware, there are
no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems to ensure that their
effectiveness.

The Company has established a risk management policy set out the
process of identification, evaluation and management of the principal
risks affecting the business. The Company has also established a
whistle-blowing policy and system for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control and other matters.

As an ongoing process, the management has regular meetings with
the team to assess and handle the risk being identified in the daily
operation of the business. Significant risk will be reported to the
Board on a timely basis. The Board will review and assess the risk
management and internal control systems at least once a year.

During the year, the Board, with the establishment of internal audit
department to carry out the internal audit function of the Group, it
had reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of
the Group including material controls over financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. After the review,
the Board considered the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

In addition, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice of timely, accurate
and sufficiently detailed disclosure of material information about the
Group. The Company has adopted a Policy on Disclosure of Inside
Information which sets out the obligations, guidelines and procedures
for handling and dissemination of inside information. With those
guidelines and procedures, the Group has management controls in
place to ensure that potential inside information can be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board to
decide about the need for disclosure.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These
include general meetings, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the
chairman at the general meetings.

At the annual general meeting held on 22nd September 2017, all
directors (except Mr. Duong Ming Chi, Henry) were present to answer
questions raised by shareholders and a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of Directors, and voted by way of poll. The Company
announced the results of the poll in the manner prescribed under the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for special general meetings requisitioned by the
shareholders

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (“Requisitionists”) shall have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called and propose any matter to be considered
at the general meeting of the Company. The Requisitionists may
deposit the written requisition for special general meeting (which shall
specify the full name of the Requisitionists, the business and proposal
to be considered at the general meeting of the Company, and shall be
signed by the Requisitionists) to the principal place of business of the
Company for the attention of the Board. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting in
specified days as provided by the bye-laws of the Company and the
Listing Rules, the Requisitionists themselves may do so in'accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director

Bye-law 103 of the Bye-laws of the Company provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended by the Board
for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director at any
general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Head Office or at the Registration Office at least seven days before the
date of the general meeting. The period for lodgment of the notices
required under this Bye-law will commence no earlier than the day after
the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general
meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company (the “Shareholder”)
wishes to propose a person other than a director of the Company
for election as a director of the Company at the general meeting (the
“Proposal”), he/she should lodge at the principal place of business in
Hong Kong of the Company at 19th Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West,
Hong Kong (i) a written notice setting out the Proposal; and (ii) a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected.

In order for the Company to inform all Shareholders of the Proposal,
the written notice must state the full name of the person proposed
for election as a director of the Company, include the person’s
biographical details as required under rule 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and such other information (e.g.
contact details, including residential address, telephone number, and
HKID card/passport number, etc.), and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned.

The period for lodgment of above written notices shall commence not
earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of the general
meeting. The Company is required under rule 13.70 of the Listing Rules
to provide the information about the Proposal in a supplementary
circular or by way of an announcement not later than 10 business days
before the general meeting. If the above written notices are received
by the Company less than 21 days prior to the general meeting,
the Company may need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act, either any number of the
registered shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of
such registered shareholders can request the Company in writing to: (a)
give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to
them any statement of not more than one thousand words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.
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PREIBWS

The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company’s relevant expenses, not less than six weeks before
the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition. Provided that an annual general meeting is called for a
date six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

For any enquiry to the Board, shareholders may put forward a written
enquiry to the Company setting out details of contact (including
address and fax number etc.) by the following means:

Address: 19/F, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong
Fax No.: 852-28179043

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties as set out below which had been attended during the year:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

A\ Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA COMMERCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia
Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 39 to 131, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31st March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 1% SEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter due to
the significance of the balance to the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, combined with the significant degree of judgment made by
the management associated with determining the net realisable value
(“NRV”).

As disclosed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
NRV represents the estimated selling prices for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale. The management’s estimation of the NRV is primarily based
on the condition of the inventories, market conditions and latest
available sales information and other factors as detailed in note
4(ii) to the consolidated financial statements. These estimations
are subject to uncertainty as a result of change of market trends,
customer preferences and competitor actions. As at 31st March
2018, the carrying amount of the inventories (net of write-down) was
HK$153,433,000.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing the appropriateness of the
valuation of the inventories included:

o Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s policy for making
allowance for watches and management’s process in identifying
slow-moving watches and determining the write-down for
watches;

° Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the inventory aging
report;

° Assessing whether the provision for inventories at the end of
the reporting period was consistent with the Group’s inventory
provision policy by recalculating, on a sample basis, the provision
for inventories based on the Group’s inventory provision policy;

. Evaluating the reasonableness of the allowance for watches
determined by the management on slow-moving watches with
reference to current market conditions and latest available sales
information; and

o Testing, on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items
by comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end against
their carrying values.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with significant degree of
judgment associated with determining the fair value. During the year,
the valuation gains on investment properties of HK$8,509,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the fair
value of the investment properties was HK$290,224,000 as at 31st
March 2018.

As disclosed in notes 2 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, these investment properties are stated at fair value based
on valuation performed by the independent professional property
valuers. In determining the fair value of investment properties, the
independent professional property valuers adopted direct comparison
approach and income capitalization approach. The valuation is
dependent on certain key inputs that involve the management and
independent professional property valuers’ judgment. The key inputs
used in valuing the investment properties by the independent property
valuers include recent prices achieved by similar properties, current
market conditions, market rental and market yield as adopted in the
valuations.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment properties
included:

° Evaluating the competence, capability and objectivity of the
independent professional property valuers;

° Obtaining an understanding from the independent professional
property valuers about the valuation methodology, the
performance of the property markets, significant assumptions
adopted, critical judgment on key inputs and data used in the
valuations;

o Assessing whether the properties were valued on a consistent
basis using a consistent methodology by inquiring of management
and independent professional property valuers;

° Assessing the reasonableness of source data used in the
valuations by benchmarking the assumptions to relevant market
information on sales prices and rentals achieved by the similar
properties in the neighbourhood; and

° Obtaining the market research and analysis to assess whether the
changes in fair value of investment properties resulted from the
valuation were reasonable and consistent with market trends to
our knowledge.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27th June 2018

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mOBER

For the year ended 31st March 2018 #HE—-ZT— \F=ZA=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Ff 5 FET FET
Revenue EEWA 5 991,429 850,218
Cost of sales 35 & AR A4S (768,998) (662,099)
Gross profit EF 222,431 188,119
Valuation gains on investment properties BEMEZHERS 8,509 25,094
Other revenue b ez 6 20,311 21,392
Other net gains Hih Uz 858 7 7,981 1,361
Distribution costs 7 SR AN (171,897) (172,000)
Administrative expenses TERE A (32,427) (28,589)
Finance costs B 5 AR R 9(a) (1,905) (4,273)
Profit before taxation R B Al % F 9 53,003 31,104
Income tax PSR 11 9,935 -
Profit for the year attributable AEEBBRAQRAFEEAZER
to the owners of the Company 62,938 31,104
Earnings per share SRAER 13
Basic (HK cents) B (BN 4.02 1.99
Diluted (HK cents) #5g (BN) 4.02 1.99

The notes on pages 46 to 131 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to

profit for the year are set out in Note 12.

A R AR

FAE = F131E Z M B AU I I R 2 B g aR 1) o

BERAFEGMN2BRENTARBAREAZFES

BN EER P
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

moBBRHbEERWER

For the year ended 31st March 2018 #HE—-ZT— \F=ZA=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Profit for the year AEERR 62,938 31,104
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REFHMEEKRE A (FHE)
for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently BEe M A Re R ERT D 1E
to profit or loss: Z2EmZIER
Exchange differences on translation of REBINMBARIMBRREEZ
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries 5 =% 11,968 (6,877)
Realisation of exchange reserve upon T —ENEARRBEIRZ
deregistation of a subsidiary TE 5 (3,122) -
Change in fair value reserve on revaluation SlRAIHEEREY
of available-for-sale investments AR EFEEED 1,157 (170)
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) NEFHMB2EI S (HE) -
for the year, net of nil tax BT 10,003 (7,047)
Total comprehensive income AEEFBRAARAEBTEA
for the year attributable to 2 42 R
the owners of the Company 72,941 24,057

The notes on pages 46 to 131 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st March 2018

RSN R

RZZB-NF=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
B E FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - R RHEE 14 19,997 20,135
Prepaid lease payments HEBENRIE 15 17,272 16,084
Investment properties REYZE 16 290,224 278,176
Available-for-sale investments e ZRE 18 8,657 7,500
Rental deposits and prepayments HEZe RTENHIE 20,981 20,853
Deferred tax assets BIETIRE & 28 17,188 -
374,319 342,748
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 153,433 280,963
Prepaid lease payments HEEMNRIE 15 498 451
Trade and other receivables Z 5 K H A fE AR 3K 20 35,653 36,652
Trading securities BEHEEHF 21 715 703
Structured deposit HEEIEER 22 12,462 -
Bank deposit with maturity over 3 months X8 A =1 A ~ RITF XK 23 12,462 -
Cash and cash equivalents BEeRBE2EED 24 67,163 26,229
282,386 344,998
Current liabilities REBE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEMERER 25 100,943 113,808
Bank loans RITEE 26 14,352 102,265
Loans from a director EEVZER 27 = 8,000
Current income tax payable BVER f& &5 P15 Bt 5,074 3,345
120,369 227,418
Net current assets RBEEFE 162,017 117,580
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABEMSE 536,336 460,328
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Rental deposits received and EHBEWzHERERES
receipt in advance 3,355 2,683
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIESE 28 19,109 13,309
Other liabilities HivBE 29 11,099 14,504
33,563 30,496
Net assets EEZRHE 502,773 429,832
Capital and reserves BAR#EE
Share capital % s 30 313,373 313,373
Reserves =] 189,400 116,459
Equity attributable to owners of FEREADABFEAZER
the Company 502,773 429,832

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th June 2018 and signed on its behalf by:
RIZB-NERNATHEREESRBREETE YA TIHIEERERES

Eav Yin
Bz
Director

EF

The notes on pages 46 to 131 form part of these financial statements.

AE S AF

Eav Guech Rosanna

Director

B
BE

FACHEF1N B2 W BRI Bz 2 BB YD -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mOEREEIR

+—RIEFE

=A=

BE—Z—N\F

For the year ended 31st March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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The notes on pages 46 to 131 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

As at 31st March 2018 RZ=ZZ—N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Ff 5 FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEK
Profit before taxation B B4 Al g Al 53,003 31,104
Adjustments for: T
Valuation gains on investment properties ‘AR Z HER= 16 (8,509) (25,094)
Net realised and unrealised losses/(gains) EHFBBEERRARER
on trading securities &8 (Uas) T8 7 120 (14)
Gain on disposals of property, HEWE B REEZKE
plant and equipment 7 (520) -
Write-down of inventories, net FE M F58 19 47,819 7,588
Impairment loss on trade receivables & 5 e W AR SRR (B &5 18 7 - 59
Impairment loss on other receivables and H b e U BR 5k K T8 - 3R IR
prepayments RAEE A 7 2,542 -
Bank interest income RITFEHA 6 (237) (112)
Dividend income AEE A 6 (99) -
Interest expenses FERZ 9a 1,905 4,273
Depreciation e 14 3,032 5,354
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 0 & 78 15 2E 15 473 459
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary - LN PNC 7 (3,122) -
Write back of long outstanding payables $& 0] &= HA K 5008 7 (3,988) -
Exchange differences ERZRE (199) 497
Changes in working capital BEESEH
Decrease in inventories FERD 94,080 19,086
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5N H M E IR
other receivables B (HEhn) 1,007 (12,663)
Decrease in trade and other payables 2 5 & H A FE S BRFUR (18,844) (31,060)
Decrease in other liabilities H & ER D (3,521) (8,100)
Increase/(decrease) in rental deposits BBk HEZE RES
received and receipt in advance 40, G ) 672 (629)
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) EER/(CAREEZES
OPERATIONS 165,614 (9,252)
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid B zHPBRPEMGR = -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) E4£R (BEAR) Ke Xk >
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFHR 165,614 (9,252)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mOREREXR

As at 31st March 2018 RZ=ZT— ) N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Ff 5 FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEK
Payment for purchase of property, SRABWE - R REE 14
plant and equipment (2,720) (2,750)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - S B2 AT 38
plant and equipment 722 -
Payment for purchase of trading securities Eiﬁ BECZEBERS (132) -
Increase in structured deposit EEMEFZIEM (12,462) -
Increase in bank deposit with maturity over §|J HAA=EAZRITERIEM
three months (12,462) -
Dividend income iz B A 99 -
Bank interest income received EWER 17 AL E WA 237 112
NET CASH USED IN EARKREEKZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ReEE (26,718) (2,638)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES A& EK
Proceeds from new bank loans IRITHEE TS 5KE 92,898 87,829
Repayment of bank loans BERPBTEE (181,873) (28,765)
Interest paid on bank loans RITEEZF2FE (1,967) (2,748)
Interest paid on loans from a director BEEEREIRNZAE = (1,211)
Repayment of loans from a director BEEEZER 27 (8,000) (49,000)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (ERR) ELXRBEEFHZ2EHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HE (98,942) 6,105
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRELEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS i, GRd) FH8 39,954 (5,785)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNRERREEEY
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 26,229 33,332
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXSEHoEE FHE
RATE CHANGES, NET 980 (1,318)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERESRHELEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 67,163 26,229
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReERBESEEYERDN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITERRFERS 24 67,163 26,229

The notes on pages 46 to 131 form part of these financial statements.
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GENERAL

Asia Commercial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in trading of watches (retail and wholesale) and property
leasing.

The Company is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and
19th Floor, 9 Des Voeux Road West, Hong Kong, respectively.
As at 31st March 2018, the directors of the Company consider
that the immediate and ultimate holding company is Century
Hero International Limited (“Century Hero”), a company which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate controlling
party of Century Hero is Mr. Eav Yin, the director of the Company.
Century Hero does not produce financial statements available for
public use.

These financial statements are presented in thousand of units
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27th June 2018.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 3 provides information on initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2018 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets are stated at their fair value as explained
in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 2(f)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-sale,
financial assets designated as at fair value through
profit or loss or as trading securities (see note 2(e)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entitles controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position depending on the nature of the liabilities.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the interest
in subsidiaries is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(i)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposed group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31st March. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Business combinations (Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced
by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset
or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments as defined

by HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with
positive net changes in fair value presented as other income
and gains and negative net changes in fair value presented
as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. These net
fair value changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated at amortised cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(i)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of
the above categories are classified as available-for-sale
securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve. As an exception
to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted price in an active market for an identical instrument
and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured
are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(i)). Dividend income from
equity securities and interest income from debt securities
calculated using the effective interest method are recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
note 2(r). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in amortised cost of debt securities are also
recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investments or they expire.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 2(h)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 2(r).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 2(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(h).

The investment property is transferred to property, plant
and equipment at fair value when there is change in use
evidenced by commencement of own-occupation.

Property, plant and equipment

The items of property, plant and equipment are stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

If a property becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that property at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

(9)

(h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located, and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve
to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form
of a lease.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 2(f)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless the
building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
recognised as property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges,
are recorded as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note 2(i). Finance
charges implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

The Group leases retail stores and office facilities.
Most leases provide for monthly fixed minimum rentals
or contingent rentals based upon sales in excess of
stated amounts and normally require the Group to
pay insurance, common area maintenance costs and
other occupancy costs. The Group recognizes rent
expense for leases that include scheduled and specified
escalations of the minimum rent on a straight-line basis
over the base term of the lease. Any difference between
the straight-line rent amount and the amount payable
under the lease is included in other liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Contingent
rental payments are expensed as incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease and is presented as “prepaid lease payments”
in the consolidated statement of financial position, is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 2(f)).

() Impairment of assets

(i

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other
current and non-current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

U]

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity securities
carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. XESHBE(8)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) (i) &EiEE(E)
() Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities () BEERREELFREREMEREZ

and other receivables (Continued)

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale
debt securities are reversed if the subsequent
increase in fair value can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
included within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- prepaid lease payments;

- rental deposits and prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see
note 2(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the interim period
relates. Consequently, if the fair value of an available-
for-sale equity security increases in the remainder of
the annual period, or in any other period subsequently,
the increase is recognised in other comprehensive
income and not profit or loss.

(i) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated on a first-in, first-out basis and
comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and
other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(k)

U]

(m)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note

2(i)).
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 2(q)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

Employee benefits

(i) ~Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share capital and share premium account) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(f),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities

(i

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of the debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(q)(ii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

n

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(iii)  Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follow:

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and the customer has accepted the goods and related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when
services are provided.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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2.

S

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(u) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent;

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the board of
directors of the Company, the Group’s most senior executive
management, for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA?”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities:
Clarification of the
Scope of HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. Disclosure of the
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities is provided in
note 38 to the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when assessing
whether taxable profits will be available against which it can utilise
a deductible temporary difference, needs to consider whether tax
law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary
difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
on how an entity should determine future taxable profits and
explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include
the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group as the Group has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the
amendments.

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure requirements in
paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12, apply to an entity’s interest
in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate, or a portion of
its interest in a joint venture or an associate that is classified as
held for sale or included in a disposal group classified as held
for sale. The amendments have had no impact on the Group’s
financial statements as the Group had no subsidiary classified as
a disposal group held for sale as at 31st March 2018.
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(Continued)

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 2, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(i) Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuations performed by independent qualified professional
valuers. In determining the fair values, the valuers have
based on a method of valuation which involves certain
estimates of market condition. In relying on the valuation
report, the directors of the Company have exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used in
the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions would result in changes in
the fair values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at
31st March 2018, the fair value of the investment properties
was HK$290,224,000 (2017: HK$278,176,000).
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4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Write-down of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The management of the Group carries out regular
review on the inventory write-down policy and estimates
the net realisable value of the watches based primarily on
condition of the inventories, current market conditions,
historical and latest sales information and sales plan as well
as the aging of inventories to identify slow-moving items.
The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of
the reporting period and inventories are written down to
estimated net realisable value. The identification of write-
down requires the use of estimates. When the expectation
of the net realisable value is less than the original estimate,
further write-down may arise. As at 31st March 2018, the
carrying amount of the inventories (net of write-down) was
HK$153,433,000 (2017: HK$280,963,000).

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment losses is based on an assessment
of the recoverability of trade and other receivables.
Impairments are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may be uncollectible. The identification of
impairment loss requires the use of estimates. Where
the expectation is different from original estimates, such
difference will impact the carrying value of receivables
and impairment loss expenses in the period in which
such estimate has been changed. As at 31st March 2018,
the carrying amount of trade and other receivables was
HK$29,291,000 (2017: HK$24,237,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4.
(Continued)

FA & 2 51 FIER B2 {4 5 (48)

(iv) Income tax and deferred taxation (iv) PR {35 B2 iE REf 18

The Group estimates its income tax provision in accordance
with the prevailing tax rules and regulations, taking into
account any special approvals obtained from relevant tax
authorities and any preferential tax treatment to which it is
entitled in each location or jurisdiction in which the Group
operates. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group believes it has recorded adequate current tax
provision based on the prevailing tax rules and regulations
and its current best estimates and assumptions. In the event
that future tax rules and regulations or related circumstances
change, adjustments to current taxation may be necessary
which would impact the Group’s results or financial position.
As at 31st March 2018, the carrying amount of current
income tax payable is HK$5,074,000 (2017: HK$3,345,000).

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as the directors
consider it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and tax expenses or other
comprehensive income in the periods in which such estimate
is changed. As at 31st March 2018, the carrying amount
of deferred tax assets amounted to HK$17,188,000 (2017:
HKS$Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

REVENUE 5. EEWA
The principal activities of the Group are trading of watches (retail AREBZFEEBLAERES (TE L) UR
and wholesale) and property leasing. YERE -
Revenue represents (i) the gross proceeds received and receivable LU ABN()R B E E A R IR - 1
derived from the sale of watches, less the value added tax, TRIEET C EMEERNE SIIETSHE
other sales taxes and trade discounts and (ii) rental income from Ky REmERAENHES WA -
property leasing.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Sales of watches EERIHE 982,675 842,304
Rental income from investment REFZEYWE 2B WA
properties 8,754 7,914
991,429 850,218
OTHER REVENUE 6. Hfthllxz
2018 2017
—E-0\fF —F—tF
HK$?000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank interest income AT FLEWA 237 112
Total interest income on financial assets not FBBEREAAEEREENER
at fair value through profit or loss BEMELENTSIA LS 237 112
Dividend income & 24 A 99 -
Promotion income RN 4,913 5,207
Advertising income BEEMA 4,397 5,409
Customer services income and others BERBKA R EA 10,665 10,664
20,311 21,392
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

7. OTHER NET GAINS Hith 5928

2018 2017
—2-N\F e
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Net realised and unrealised (loss)/gain BHEBEEERAERZ
on trading securities (E518) W25 55 (120) 14
Compensation received upon the closure of a shop — i 5 & 45 205 2 #E A 2,721 -
Impairment loss on trade receivables B SRRSO EEE - (59)

Impairment loss on other receivables H b e WAR SR R TR 3B
and prepayments BEEE (2,542) -
Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment H& 9%  #EE KR 2 W 520 -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary (note) FEiE— Rk B AR 2 Wk (B at) 3,122 -
Write back of long outstanding payables & o] R H R+ 3008 3,988 -
Others HAh 292 1,406
7,981 1,361

Note: it -

T 54 8 S SR SRR T A7 PR /A W) (the “deregistered entity”), which was a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group and was engaged in the trading of watches
in the PRC, was deregistered during the year ended 31st March 2018.
The gain on deregistration amounting to approximately HK$3,122,000
represented the exchange reserve arisen from translating the assets and
liabilities of the deregistered entity into the presentation currency of the
Group which was reclassified to profit or loss upon the deregistration. No
cash flow effects resulted at the date of deregistration.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported internally
to the board of directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”) for the purposes of resource
allocations and performance assessments. The Group has
presented two reportable segments: (i) sale of watches (retail and
wholesale) and (ii) properties leasing. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form these two reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the CODM monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note to
the financial statements. Segment profit/(loss) represents the
profit earned by/(loss) from each segment without allocation of
central administration costs and corporate costs which cannot be
meaningfully allocated to individual segment. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation and amortization of assets attributable to
those segments.

The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in @ manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
current income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and borrowings
not attributable to individual segments and other corporate
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Blf 5
8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. 4YEBIBE (&)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, results, assets

UTAREERED Rz EE NE X6 BE

and liabilities by operating segment: RaEzn:
2018
—E-N\E
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
HEKHE HEME ki ARDE @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
External revenue (Note) #oMRas () 982,675 8,754 991,429 = 991,429
Operating profit/(loss) wERR/ (F8) 38,226 7,344 45,570 (7,389) 38,181
Valuation gains on investment BEME 2 HEK R
properties - 8,509 8,509 - 8,509
Interest income FEKA 237 - 237 - 237
Other net gains Hip s 5E 8,101 - 8,101 (120) 7,981
Finance costs B (1,905) - (1,905) - (1,905)
Segment results GRE 44,659 15,853 60,512 (7,509) 53,003
Income tax credit TR 9,935
Profit for the year REREM 62,938
Write-down of inventories WREE (47,819) - (47,819) - (47,819)
Gain on deregistation of a subsidiary FH-HEREARKE 3,122 - 3,122 - 3,122
Write back of long outstanding payables % [ & &4 {5 708 3,988 - 3,988 - 3,988
Impairment loss of other receivables * E {th & U 85 30 % 78
and prepayments HERERFR (2,542) - (2,542) - (2,542)
Net realised and unrealised loss BHFEEERLAER
on trading securities ZERFE - - = (120) (120)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (2,914) (233) (3,147) (358) (3,505)
Income tax expenses et &M (1,453) = (1,453) = (1,458)
Deferred tax FITHIA 11,388 - 11,388 - 11,388
Segment assets SHEE 303,921 294,689 598,610 32,250 630,860
Available-for-sale investments AHHEZRE 8,657
Deferred tax assets ELEHIBAE 17,188
Total assets BEE 656,705
Additions to non-current segment AREHEERSHH
assets during the reporting period BEZEMN 3,970 7 4,041 - 4,041
Segment liabilities AR 116,782 9,274 126,056 3,693 129,749
Current income tax payable ENERFE MFT/S R 5,074
Deferred tax liabilities ELEREEE 19,109
Total liabilities Baf 153,932

Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March Mt RBEZZ— \E=A=+— AL FEHMHIE
2018. DEPEBHE -

jit o P S SR B A R A )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt ¥ SR 2R Bt 51
SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. SEPIBE (&)
2017
—E-tE
Sale of Properties Segmental
watches leasing total Unallocated Total
HEEHE HENXE ikt AELE Foh
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
External revenue (Note) HoM S (FEE) 842,304 7,914 850,218 - 850,218
Operating profit/(loss) mEsRF,/ (B1B) 8,309 6,838 15,147 (6,337) 8,810
Valuation gains on investment REME 2 HEKR
properties - 25,094 25,094 - 25,094
Interest income FEWA 112 - 112 - 112
Other net gains Hiolim 58 1,347 - 1,347 14 1,361
Finance costs B R K (4,273) - (4,273) - (4,273)
Segment results DEEE 5,495 31,932 37,427 (6,323) 31,104
Income tax Fri5%: _
Profit for the year AEERM 31,104
Write-down of inventories MREE (7,588) - (7,588) - (7,588)
Impairment loss of trade receivables 2 5B UREEE (59) - (59) - (59)
Net realised and unrealised gain BHREEERRAER
on trading securities ZWEFE = - - 14 14
Depreciation and amortisation WE REH (5,481) (243) (5,724) (89) (5,813)
Segment assets DEEE 394,848 279,410 674,258 5,988 680,246
Available-for-sale investments AREEsRE 7,500
Total assets ML E 687,746
Additions to non-current segment AR E R IERE 5
assets during the reporting period BEZEM 3,013 7 3,020 1,788 4,808
Segment liabilities SHEE 229,149 8,638 237,787 3,473 241,260
Current income tax payable BN ERFE A5 HY 3,345
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBAR 13,309
Total liabilities BEE 257,914

Note: There were no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31st March

2017.

it RBE-ZE—tF=A=+-BLFEHRLE

DEBEHEE -

Annual Report 2018 |79



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

8. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 8. NS (A
Geographic information "EhEER
The following is an analysis of geographical location of (i) the LWTAOREERAINET, 2 WS R(i)VAER
Group’s revenue from external customers and (ii) the Group’s T MR GEE HEENRIE - IHEYE
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments, RHEERSRTENKIE TR LHESE QIR
investment properties and rental deposits and prepayments. The IR EWIEX 22 - KEHME 7 IFRHE
geographical location of customers is referred to the location at EeEREEZERMEIEERE -

which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical locations of non-current assets are based on the
physical location of the assets.

Revenues from

external customers Non-current assets
RENBEF 2 W= FREBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF —E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET FET FET FET
The People’s Republic of hEE A RAEME
China, excluding Hong Kong & ABRIN 365,214 378,939 66,803 62,457
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (REH) 625,194 470,140 266,180 260,233
Switzerland Wt 1,021 1,139 15,491 12,558
991,429 850,218 348,474 335,248
Information about major customers FAREFEZEFREHN
For the year ended 31st March 2018, revenue of approximately REBEE-_ZT-N\F=ZA=+t—HLEFE B
HK$115,267,000 (2017: HK$151,156,000) was derived from a 115,267,0003% 7T (= Z — + 4 : 151,156,000/%
single external customer who contributed more than 10% of total J0) HIA R B B — NI R P R FRME S B ALK
revenue of the Group. This revenue was attributable to the sales of @10%A L - ZE W R B EERIEE D MO ER ©

watches segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BiRE R 3t
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. [&if#H auit iRl
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BREADEF DM GEA) AT EE
(a) Finance costs (a) BFFERXKR
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings RITE T B 1,745 3,005
Interest on loans from a director BEFE2ERAE 160 1,268
Total interest expenses on financial FERBEREANERENS M
liabilities not at fair value through BEMELENF B KA
profit or loss 1,905 4,273
(b) Staff costs (b) SIpAK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E i
HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits (including Fe -  ITENRAMBET
directors’ fee and emoluments) (BREFHEERME) 57,784 46,987
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RRE R EH B K 4,110 4,018
61,894 51,005
(c) Other items (c) Hfthisa B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Rental receivable from investment EHEDERERASNMBEEZS L
properties less direct outgoings of 408,000 7T (=T — 4 -
HK$408,000 (2017: HK$359,000) 359,000/% 7T ) (8,346) (7,555)
Net exchange loss ER BB 308 426
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR B &
Audit services %R 1,230 1,180
Other services E A, AR 75 329 314
Depreciation for property, plant and M MR REBETE
equipment 3,032 5,354
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments HEBNZIER 473 459
Write down of inventories MR T & 47,819 7,588
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 REKEFREREE - 59
Impairment loss on other receivables H b i U AR 3R I TE A5 R E R (B B 1R
and prepayments 2,542 -
Write back of long outstanding payables B0 R E AR ROE (3,988) -
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMEZKEHERS
rented premises
- Minimum rentals —&{EHA2 86,501 99,375
- Contingent rentals — S AMEE 1,235 3,452
87,736 102,827
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AERY 2 FEMKAK 768,998 662,099
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F
10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. EEMEREaSHMEAT

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) =EM2
The emoluments of each director for the years ended 31st REZ_FE—+FER-_ZFT—N\F=ZA=+—
March 2018 and 2017 are set out below: AEFEBNES MES#IOT -
2018
—E-N\%
Employer’s
contribution
Allowances  to retirement
Directors’ Basic Discretionary and other benefit
fees salaries bonus benefits scheme Total
EER BHRER
=60 Exge  FRERL HiER  EEEHE @t

HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FAT FAT

Executive Directors BITES
Eav Yin B 238 4,175 1,630 1,042 - 7,085
Eav Guech Rosanna CHLE - 840 150 - - 990
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE - = - - - -
238 5,015 1,780 1,042 - 8,075
Independent Non-executive Directors FUFHTES
Lai Si Ming BEH 238 - - - - 238
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline TAF 238 - - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - - 238
4 - - - 4 714
952 5,015 1,780 1,042 - 8,789
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. ESMHERESME AT (8)
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (i) ZEEM=2 (8
2017
—E—tF

Employer’s

contribution

Allowances  to retirement

Directors’ Basic and other benefit
fees salaries benefits scheme Total

AR RIKER
Rk EX%& HiEdl  FrElEEHT @
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET BT FHET

Executive Directors HTES
Eav Yin B 238 4175 1,042 - 5,455
Eav Guech Rosanna Bt - 840 2 - 842
Duong Ming Chi, Henry BRE 3 = L - -
238 5,015 1,044 - 6,297
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors

Lai Si Ming R 238 - - - 238
Wong Wing Yue, Rosaline THEF 238 - - - 238
Lee Tat Cheung, Vincent TER 238 - - - 238
714 - - - 714
952 5,015 1,044 - 7,011

Notes: i

()  There was no arrangement under which a director waived or iy RZZ—CFRZF-NF=A=+—AHL
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31st FEHME - WEEEREXRERNEEAM
March 2018 and 2017. B2 RHe

(i) No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors as (i) REBE=Z—tFE2=-F—/\F=ZA=+—
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as BIEzHE AEETEINTEEEAR
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31st March SIEMAIRMARER% - StEABERE
2018 and 2017. BB -

(i) As at 31st March 2018 and 2017, the directors held share (i) RZT—+FR-_ZT-NF=ZA=+—80"
options under the Company’s share option scheme. The details ERRBEALTBRETEERERE - B
of the share options are disclosed under the paragraph “share REFIEREFeME 2 [BREZFTE &
option scheme” in the report of the directors and Note 31(a). KB 7E31(a)F H 5E -

(iv) The Company has not appointed Chief Executive, and the role (iv) ARAWEZETHABRITRESNAER
and function of the Chief Executive has been performed by the M ERMITEERET -

executive directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 10. ESMHERESME AT ()
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(ii) Individuals with highest emoluments (i) E=MEAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one hfisemEHFALTH  — U (ZT—EF: MW
(2017: two) is director whose emoluments are disclosed in i) # = 2 B & PO 5E10() 4% 58 o H fh POz
Note 10(i). The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of (ZF—tF: =) ATFER e @FEN
the other four (2017: three) individuals is as follows: N
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Basic salaries, allowances and other BEXRF &  EZUREMER
emoluments 5,252 5,075
Performance related incentive payments RIFEE A 1,677 1,288
Employer’s contribution to retirement IR KRR A FT 8 E R
benefit scheme 109 41
7,038 6,404
The emoluments of the remaining four (2017: three senior BT (ZE—+E =R EEE) &
management) individuals with the highest emoluments are SMeE ATNFRYNEE :

within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/& 7t - 1,500,0007 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/& 7T - 2,000,0007 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T - 2,500,000/%5 T - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/%8 T 1 1
4 3
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11.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
OR LOSS

R §5 ER R B 5F

REeBRREANZPRSH

2018 2017
S L
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Current tax B ER% 18
PRC Corporate Income Tax REI TSR
- Charge for the year —REEMREH 1,453 -
Deferred tax BT IR
Origination and reversal of temporary BRMEECEEARED
differences (11,388) -
(9,935) -

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%). No Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been provided for in the financial statements for the years
ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 either because the Hong Kong
subsidiaries have accumulated tax losses brought forward which
exceeded the estimated assessable profits or the Hong Kong
subsidiaries sustained losses for taxation purpose.

Taxation for the PRC subsidiaries is provided at the rate of 25%
(2017: 25%). No PRC income tax has been provided for in the
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017 either
because the PRC subsidiaries have accumulated tax losses
brought forward which exceeded the estimated assessable profits
or the PRC subsidiaries sustained losses for taxation purpose.

The subsidiary in Switzerland is subject to Switzerland Profits Tax
at the rate of 16% (2017: 16%). No Switzerland Profits Tax has
been provided for the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 as
the Group has no estimated assessable profits in Switzerland.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the British
Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in these
jurisdictions.

BB RRNEEFNERER165%(ZFT—+
F:16.5%) c MiERER P W EREAFEBAE
HEEHASEZE T —+tFR_Z—\F=A
=+t ALEFEBEBWER A& R HIEERE
BEANFEMTERBEAFNKNE BB R RSE
B RIS 18 o

HRIME A AT =25%aHETH B (ZT— L4
25%) MEBE_Z-—+tF=ZA=T—-HILFE
MBI mERT  WEAPBEMSHELEE
B8 B S B BT &8 A A1 AT REH A T B IR R m AR
[E AT FE AR 2 B =k b B Y B 8 R R 1S MY TR 7S IS

e

RintZMBARImERERER16% (=T —+
Fi16%) MNEBE-ZE-—+ER_ZT—)\F=
R=+—BIEE  B»_ARE RN &KL 2 EA
HEERBOER - QR Em TSR EE -

REAFREMEBREZESERIRE AREE
BURDEERER ANXIMEAMAEHES -
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT

OR LOSS (Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

1. REBREAZFRSH (&)

BIAR X EEFHaMIEA R R E 2 Bk

12,

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Profit before taxation B B A e ) 53,003 31,104
Notional tax on profit before taxation, LA B KA A B s A A @R A X
calculated at the tax rates applicable to STEHNBRATERE 2 E
losses in the countries concerned 9,936 7,247
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ERMIE E TR S H 2R E 7,352 2,377
Tax effect of non-taxable items EHRFEETERGCIEE ZRBEE (4,031) (10,559)
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax losses ' FRARZFER 2R GEB 2 RGTE (15,879) (5,210)
Tax effect of previously unrecognised and BAERGERARREFR2HIBEEE
unused tax losses and deductible temporary LA K IR 32 & IR AE 5118 & 2 2 A 40
differences now recognised as deferred tax BMERZER MG E
assets (17,188) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RWHERZREBEBZRETE 4,472 6,679
Tax effect of temporary AR ERER
difference not recognised 2 IS8 (397) (534)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of B B A Rl Z R 9 ik Al 2 TE I EL
PRC subsidiaries 5,800 -
Actual tax credit B R TR (9,935) -
DIVIDENDS 12. B2
2018 2017
—E-N\#F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Final dividend proposed after the end of RS BRE R IKE 2 R
the reporting period of HK$0.0128 % B & [%0.0128/8 7T
(2017: HK$Nil) per share (ZF—+tF  THT) 20,056 -
Special dividend proposed after the end of RS BRE R IR E 2 R
the reporting period of HK$0.0128 % 8 & /%0.0128/% T
(2017: HK$Nil) per share —E—FTET) 20,056 -
40,112 -
ol o i o SR B PR A
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13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

The distributions of the final dividend and special dividend are
subject to the shareholders’ approvals and the completion of
capital reorganisation as disclosed in note 39 to the financial
statements. The final dividend and special dividend would
be distributed out of contributed surplus after the capital
reorganisation. The final dividend and special dividend declared
or proposed after the end of the reporting period have not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 31st March 2017.
The directors do not propose any payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31st March 2017.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 of HK$62,938,000
and HK$31,104,000, respectively, and the weighted average
number of 1,566,866,000 ordinary shares in issue during the
years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per
share for the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017.

The Company’s share options have no dilutive effect for
the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 because the
exercise price of the Company’s share options was higher
than the average market price of the Company’s shares for
both years.

12,

13.

R §5 ER R B 5F

iz 2 (48)

T B 7% S 2k P RE 39 P 4 B8 R 3 R HA A B K i Bl A
SAFBREMERBAEATRETAEE - K
HIR B R R BCR S B A BA R BB ERIE
DIk e RMERRRE R ZHIREARRALER
EASRIlR X |mNRERRERREE -

BE_ZT—+tF=HA=+—BUIFEITERED
HEE EFESTERERRBE_T—tF=A
=t RALEFEZEMRBPEE -

SRR
(a) SBREKRERR

FRERBINDIREBEEE T —tFR =
T-NF=ZA=F+—"BLFEZRQA
BB AT 9 5 A31,104,0007% 7T &
62,938,000 8 LA KRB E T —tF R
T-NFZAZ+—ALFEZOEITME
15 3% 5m A% 21 B 1,566,866,000/% 51 & °

(b) BREMBRN

REBEE-_E—+FRZE-N\EF=A=+—
HIEFESREEEAFEENTRERR
F) o

REBEZE_ZT—+EFR_T-N\F=A=+—
Bk & E - AR R R s e - B
FiBEMFER - ARFBERETEEESR
REBREFIGHE -
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87 5% R 2= Bt 5
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ - B ES
Furniture, Leasehold Machinery
Landand fixtures and improve- and Motor  Construction
buildings fittings ments equipment vehicles  in progress Total
LEREL LGS BER
1HREF REE £ EL & HRIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT Tz AT FAT AT
31st March 2017 ZE-t¥=f=1-H
At 31st March 2016 and 1st April 2016« RZE-RE=A=+-FAk
“Z-REMA-A
Cost AR 18,638 3210 47,414 23,212 2,578 - 95,112
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERNE
impairment (2,354) (3,196) (41,911) (21,966) (2,578) - (72,005)
Net carrying amount BEEE 16,284 74 5,503 1246 - - 23,107

At 1st April 2016, net of accumulated ~ H=F-/ENA-F 1k Zit

depreciation and impairment TERAE 16,284 74 5,503 1,246 - - 23,107
Translation differences HEEE (184) - (145) (39) - - (368)
Additions RE - - 555 407 1,788 - 2,750
Depreciation charge mELH (339) (33) (4,119) (774) 89) - (5,354)

At 31st March 2017, net of accumulated R-Z-+&=F=+-0"

depreciation and impairment NhEHNERAE 15,761 41 1,79 840 1,699 - 20,135
31st March 2018 “E-\f=A=1-A
At 1st April 2017 RZZ~t§NA-H
Cost RAE 18,374 3,267 42,029 22,628 4,366 - 90,664
Accumulated depreciation and ZHERHE
impairment 0613) (3226) (£0,235) 21,788) 2,667) - (70,529)
Net carrying amount FAFA 15,761 4 1,794 840 1,699 - 20,135

At 1st April 2017, net of accumulated  R-F—+EMA-—F - Mk 25

depreciation and impairment TERAE 15,761 4 1,79 840 1,699 - 20,135
Translation differences HEZEE 296 - 46 34 - - 376
Additions KE - 38 862 212 - 1,548 2,720
Disposals e - - (202) - - - (202)
Depreciation charge nELH (30) (23) (1,866) 480) (358) - (3,032)

At 31st March 2018, net of accumulated % -F—-\E=A=+-8 11K E3

depreciation and impairment RERAE 15,752 56 634 666 1,341 1,548 19,997
At 31st March 2018 RZE-\E=f=1-H
Cost AR 18,813 331 33,963 22,182 4,366 1,548 84,183
Accumulated depreciation and SHFERNE
impairment (3,061) (3.255) (33,329) 21,516) (3,025) - (64,186)
Net carrying amount BHEE 15,752 56 634 666 1,341 1,548 19,997

0

SHe

o

i

EEEHARAE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 51
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14, WZ - IBBRBE (H)

Notes: Bzt

(a) Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight- () YZE - MERRHABHERTIFEAE
line basis at the following rates per annum: e :

Freehold land is not depreciated KA L TFHRITE

Leasehold land 2% or over the remaining terms Gish-dan:u) 2% IR TR A) 82 T F BR
of the leases, if shorter (AR EE A%)

Buildings 2 - 4% or over the remaining gF 2 - 4% HIRELIHRT
lease period, if shorter FH (SR E ALE)

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 15 - 20% RE - REREE 15-20%

Leasehold improvements 5-50% or over the remaining HEMERE 5-50%LMELHEAT
lease period, if shorter FH (UBREE BE)

Machinery and equipment 20 - 50% 2SR 20 - 50%

Motor vehicles 20% U 20%

(b) At 31st March 2018, land and buildings of HK$11,901,000 b)) R-—=-AE=F=+—1 " 11,901,000%
(2017: HK$14,045,000) were pledged as securities for bank L2 EHRETF (ZF—+F 1 14,045,000
loans as detailed in Note 26. B EERRITER ZER - FHEHRK

7526 °
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. THE&TafIFRIE
2018 2017
e —E—tf
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

At the beginning of the year FH 16,535 18,055

Translation difference HhE EEE 1,708 (1,061)

Amortisation 0 (473) (459)

At the end of the year FR 17,770 16,535

HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Analysis for reporting purposes as: HRFEBNZ DN
Current portion B E 498 451
Non-current portion FEMENED 7 17,272 16,084
17,770 16,535

At 31st March 2018, no prepaid lease payments (2017: RZZE—\F=ZA=+—H WEEHEEBEMR

HK$16,535,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans as B (ZZ—+ 4 :16,535,000/8 7T) fEIR1T E K

detailed in Note 26. o ISR E26 -
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R #5 ¥R R B 5F

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. IR&EMF

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

At valuation H{EFI{E
At the beginning of the year REH) 278,176 255,188
Translation difference MEEE 3,539 (2,106)
Fair value gains AV €l 8,509 25,094
At the end of the year RE R 290,224 278,176

The Group’s property interests held to earn rentals are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

Note:

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.
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16.

(@)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

16. IR&ME (1§)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using

Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which

fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant

unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

Level 8 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

(a)

R §5 ER R B 5F

BREMENARAETE (])

/A

EER (%)

FE_MHEE: AREAEERAS
—ARBE - BRE SRR R E
FE—F R KREBEKRTT
BRZBE - TABERZEES
Hi 58RI T E R 2 8z -

E-MEE: AREAEERAE
AR 8% -

Fair value measurements as at
31st March 2018 categorised into
R=-Z-NE=B=+—-H=

AREFESE
Fair value
at
31st March
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R=ZZ—N\F
=A=+—8
ZARE F1BR FH2BR HIBR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value REMEAIARE
measurement =
Investment properties: HEME
- Hong Kong —B% 238,280 - - 238,280
- Mainland China PN 38,684 - - 38,684
- Switzerland —Im=* 13,260 - - 13,260
290,224 - - 290,224
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

16. IR&ME (18)

(a)

REMENARESE ()

(i

R EER(E)

Fair value measurements as at

31st March 2017 categorised into

RZE—+E=A=+—H2Z

AREFENE

Fair value
at
31st March
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZZE—+F
=A=+—H
ZARE F1E R F2ER FEIER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FETT FET FET
Recurring fair value REEAARE
measurement &
Investment properties: B
- Hong Kong —&# 232,850 - - 232,850
— Mainland China — R B K fE 34,969 - - 34,969
— Switzerland — =+ 10,357 - - 10,357
278,176 - - 278,176

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31st March 2018 and 2017. The valuations of
investment properties located in Hong Kong and the
PRC as at 31st March 2018 and 2017 were carried
out by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, the firm of
independent professional qualified valuers with recent
experience in the location and category of properties
being valued. The valuations of investment properties
located in Switzerland as at 31st March 2018 and 2017
were carried out by BMI Appraisals Limited and Pierre
Berest S.A., respectively, the firms of independent
professional qualified valuers with recent experience in
the location and category of properties being valued.
The Group’s finance manager and the chief financial
officer have discussion with the surveyors on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. 2B (8)

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued) (a) BREMENARESS (8)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (i) FEZERIAEGEEN
Relationship of
Range or unobservable
Valuation Key weighted inputs to
techniques unobservable inputs average fair value
B DNREFRT
fh B i TEFABERZEE R BEREHBBRFE
Investment properties Market comparison Premium/(discount) (12)%-9% The higher
located in the PRC approach to transaction price (2017: (16)%-6%) the adjusted
MR ZIEE ik 35 %A (to reflect location, (ZZ—+4: transaction price,

Investment properties
located in Hong Kong

UREBZ REME

Investment properties
located in Switzerland

Rz REME

Market comparison
approach
W5 L BUA

Income capitalization
approach
WAB R E

age and maintenance)
(B (8) X 5 B
(ARBL B - 28R RIRE)

Premium/(discount)
to transaction price
(to reflect location,
age and maintenance)
HE/ () RS EB
(AR B EE -~ R RIRE)

Capitization rate (derived
from monthly market rent)

BEREE® (HEHTS
BEHTE)

Market monthly rent rate
mEg A X

(16)%-6% )

(34)%-7%
(2017: (33)%-18%)
(225
(33)%-18%)

7.50%

(2017:5.75%)
(Z2—t%:

5.75%)

SFri1
(2017: SFr10)

the higher the
fair value

The higher

the adjusted
transaction price,
the higher the
fair value
HEERAS

The higher the
capitalization rate,
the lower the

fair value

AR XA

AR EBE

The higher
the monthly

The fair value of investment properties located in
Hong Kong and the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price of comparable properties on a price per square
feet or meter basis, adjusted for a premium or discount
specific to the quality of the Group’s properties
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for
higher quality properties will result in a higher fair value
measurement.

The fair value of investment properties located in
Switzerland is determined using income capitalization
approach by reference to the market rentals of all
lettable units of the properties and assessed by
reference to the rental achieved in the lettable units.
The capitalization rate adopted is made by reference
to the yield rate observed by the valuer for the similar
properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuers’ knowledge of the factors specific to the
respective properties.

per square metre market rent rate,

FEHK the higher the
113w+ E BB fair value
(B4 SR™H
10852 0588) HeXxms -

& =
NAHEAS

R BEREBZELEMEZAAE
TERMSLLERETE  HE2ET
HEBMERGFHREF T KER
HEAEZAHEE BERAEH
MIERE B 2R B Sk T R (BT 8
EXSUBAR) FHRAE - HYEED
EREHETERR  BERTEM
BZRRETRS -

URImLMEEMEN DA ERAR
ANEROE2RYEMA R HHEEN
B IS EE B - WAL A HAE B
ERMBESKRETE - MRANEARL
bE 3R T5 2 SR AR ol 1 (B B BRI s JR B
MEZWRE  WRELEMSESH
BERMERZNANBETHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year.

The valuation gains on investment properties amounting
to HK$8,509,000(2017: HK$25,094,000) are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Translation difference is recognised in other
comprehensive income in “exchange reserve”

(b) The Group’s investment properties outside Hong Kong with a
carrying amount of HK$5,945,000 (2017: HK$5,381,000) are
registered under the name of other persons in trust for the
Group.

(c) At 31st March 2018, certain investment properties of

HK$227,180,000 (2017: HK$251,162,000) were pledged as
securities for bank loans as detailed in Note 26.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

SUBSIDIARIES 17. MEBAS
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st March UTRINNVR ZZE—NE=ZA=1+—BFENBR
2018: AR -
Place of
incorporation or Paid up Proportion of
establishment issued ordinary issued share capital/
or registration/ share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary business registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EatiEd sk e BEACROEE AARFBERTRE .
HEAR AR Bews BE/ERER HAfMERZED L TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E#& A
AC (Overseas) Limited British Virgin Islands HK$10,000 100% = Investment holding
KERZHES 10,0003 7T 100% - REER
Juvenia Montres SiA. Switzerland SFr.1,875,000 - 100% Assembling and
Wt 1,875,00037 )% marketing of gold and
jewellery watches
= 100% REREHSEREOE
BEEZEB(EE)ES The People’s Republic RMB128,403,300 - 100% Watch trading
BERAE of China*
hEAREME 128403800 E% - 100% BHES
Time City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 3,000,000 shares - 100% Watch trading
BEARH(BE)BRAF BE 3,000,000/ - 100% BHES
Juvenia (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Limited watch trading
B2 (BE)BERAR Bk 5,000,000 - 100% RREREERES
Accord Watch & Jewellery Hong Kong 3,500,100 shares - 100% Brand development and
(International) Limited watch trading
N2 ERAE (BF)BR AR 5 3,500,100 - 100% niEERIEERES
Wakmann Watch (International) Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100% Brand development and
Company Limited watch trading
R EBRERAF e 20,000,000/% - 100% mEERRERES
Wakmann Watch (Shanghai) The People’s Republic RMB500,000 - 100% Watch trading
Trading Limited of China*
BA () EEREFERAR mEARAME 500,000 A K7 - 100% BREH
Asia Commercial Property British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - Property holding and
Holdings Limited Hong Kong investment
KBEIRHSE/BE 1% 100% - NEBERKRE
The Eav’s Group Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% - Investment holding
EELEEEARAA B 2B 100% - REZR
* Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a * REFEAREMBEAETMAZEINERE -
wholly foreign-owned enterprise.
# Registered under the laws of The People’s Republic of China as a # BEPEARAMBEZETIMABRANRE -

domestic enterprise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. OitHEZRSE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Investments in TER
Club debentures, net (Note) SATES  FRE (W) 7,707 6,550
Unlisted equity securities in BB LEMEAR
Hong Kong 75 950 950
8,657 7,500
Note: HtaE -

The club debentures are measured at fair value. Fair value of the club
debentures has been determined by reference to the bid price quoted in the
second hand market. The increase in carrying amount of HK$1,157,000 for
the year ended 31st March 2018 (2017: decrease of HK$170,000) was due

to the increase in their fair values.

EEFREARBENE - WEMEHFZARETD
FmEEZEEMmMEE BE-_T—\F=A=
LEFJE I E AR T E 1 001,157,000/ T (=%
& R{E170,00087T) - TRAESHEZ AR BN

19. INVENTORIES 19. 8

2018 2017
—B-NF e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Watches Eik
Raw materials R R 28,801 36,524
Work in progress F 2K @ 415 557
Finished goods BB 124,217 243,882
153,433 280,963

At 31st March 2018, certain inventories of HK$43,322,000 (2017:
HK$81,814,000) were pledged as securities for bank loans as

detailed in Note 26.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss is as follows:

RZZE-NF=ZR=F+—-H BFHFE
43,322,000/ 7T (= F— £4% : 81,814,000 )
EIERIRITERO R - ST E26 -

ERARAX 2FEERLINAGRBRARNN
s

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount of inventories sold PEFEZEREEE 721,179 654,511
Write-down of inventories FEMUR 51,093 11,092
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMUR B E (3,274) (3,504)
768,998 662,099

ol o i o SR B PR A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Bf 51
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. &SR H fih FEULEE R
2018 2017
—E-N\§F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 AR
- Third parties — 20,487 15,459
- Related parties — &N A 2,366 2,841
22,853 18,300
Allowance for doubtful debts ROERRE (1,230) (2,464)
21,623 15,836
Other receivables H e AR X
- Third parties =5 =77 2,836 7,368
- Related parties — A=~ A 4,832 1,033
7,668 8,401
Loans and receivables B R FE U R R 29,291 24,237
Deposits and prepayments e KB HE 6,362 12,415
35,653 36,652
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables RZZE—tFER_T-N\GF=A=+—HAEH
at 31st March 2018 and 2017 approximate their fair values. ZESREMBEWER ZRBEEQAERSE -
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FT7E 8 5 & H fth FE U 51 18 78 B B] 7 —4F ;A9 /e 3¢
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. ERAER -
(a) Aging analysis (a) BRESP IR
The Group allows credit period of up to 180 days to its REBEG TEEHRIBAZ180B 2EEH -
customers. The aging analysis of the trade receivables of RBEEBAR - BEEZAARNRRERE
HK$21,623,000 (2017: HK$15,836,000) at the end of the 7 B 5 pE Kk BRE21,623,00008 7T (- T —+
reporting period based on invoice date and net of allowance 4 15,886,000/ 70) Z BREC D ATAA T ¢
for doubtful debt is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Up to 90 days BNHAZ=90H 18,996 13,636
91 to 180 days 91£180H 676 623
181 to 365 days 181£365H 1,010 1,054
Over 365 days 365H LA £ 941 523
21,623 15,836
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of the trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against the trade
receivables directly.

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year, including both specific and collective loss components
is as follows:

20.

SARH BRI (48)

(b)

8 ARURRIE A

BB S EUCRF R ERRE B RER
ROk BRIEAKRBERKEBRETRE IR
R RIERI - AU BRT - BEEES
HEMEE 5 EBR -

FARBZREREZY (REEMNKEARE
1BERD) AT PR

2018 2017

—E-N\E ZE—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

At the beginning of the year REY) 2,464 2,510
Translation differences MEZR - (105)
Uncollectible amounts written off Hifi 55 1 AT W [l 2 RE (1,234) -
Impairment loss recognised MR 2 AR K - 59
At the end of the year RER 1,230 2,464

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables as at 31st March 2018 is a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables of HK$1,230,000
(2017: HK$2,464,000) with a carrying amount before
provision of HK$1,230,000 (2017: HK$2,464,000). The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered.

Trade receivables that are not impaired
The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired, based
on due date, are as follows:

(c)

REZE-N\F=R=+—HEEELLRE
2 IR UM B 2 BHE T B R & 5 B4R
71,230,000/ 7T (= Z —+ 4 : 2,464,000
B KR ERE (KRB EM 2 REEER
1,230,000/ 7T (=& — £ %F : 2,464,000/%
7t)) o ZERRENE SRRSO KB
FHRNER KRB — B RRATLRKE -

i 62 8 ARBIRR

RIBZHE - phEER SRR RRIEREZ
B 5 RERFRE DT T

2018 2017

—E-N\§F —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Neither past due nor impaired 7 % 8 B SlOR (B 17,535 13,195
Less than 90 days past due i > 790 B 1,536 724
91 to 180 days past due # #1912 180H 621 1,047
Over 180 days past due ®HI180H M | 1,931 870
4,088 2,641

21,623 15,836
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20.

21.

22,

23.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. BEBH fihEUE (8)
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (Continued) (c) EEEZSAMUERR ()
Trade receivables are generally due within 90 days from the —RREE S EKRFEHRRE R LI0ARNE
date of billings. Receivables that were neither past due nor B - BiEma BB E S EBRRBRIERE
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there REWETPRARCEHEIRFAA -
was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BEHEERECEREREZZBH LT
to a number of independent customers that have a good B ZSEBFPEAEBEZZERLERT -
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, RIBBELER  ERERA  RSEHEAE
management believes that no impairment allowance is ERRERE  DTHERNEEEERTESEAE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been B BAESDERIET 2E D - REEN
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are ERUEERTEEAERS -
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
TRADING SECURITIES 21. HHEE
2018 2017
—=E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity securities at fair value rWEHFZARE 715 703
The fair value of listed equity securities is based on their closing EMBEBHFZARBEUARRERREWT 2EAE
bid price at the end of the reporting period. REE o
STRUCTURED DEPOSIT 22, BIEEER
At 31st March 2018, principal-protected floating income REZ—N\F=A=+—H" ' ERFHE—MERT
structured deposit is placed with a bank in the PRC and the BFA—ERNZHAELEBEFR  EBFHZ
returns of which is determined by reference to the change in EMIGERRE 2 FBMRTE  ZEBIEFRR
exchange rates quoted in the market. The structured deposit PRERFEDIEEAFABRREAARBEEEZ
is designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or RUEEE o &5 1417 32 &~ € %8 /410,000,0007T A
loss on initial recognition. The principal amount of the structured R¥& (4912,462,000/7T) L EFENT1.0% =
deposit is RMB10,000,000 (approximately HK$12,462,000) which B.9%:TE - WINEFHIE 2 X T HRAEE R
carries interest ranging from 1.0% to 3.9% per annum, depending JE °
on the exchange rate between US dollars and Euro during the
deposit period.
The structured deposit was redeemed in June 2018. The change EEUEGTRN _ZE—\FXAER - H=EOEH
in fair value up to the date of redemption was insignificant. IE RARBEZEHUTRE -
No change in fair value for the structured deposit has been HREEBIRE MUERBE—_ZT—/\F=
recognised for the year ended 31st March 2018 as the effect is RA=+—HEFEH#BMLERN AL EEBER
insignificant. ABR -
BANK DEPOSIT WITH MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS 23. JHBRA=-EAZRGTER

At 31st March 2018, the bank deposit of RMB10,000,000
(approximately HK$12,462,000) carried the interest at 1.95% per
annum.

The Group did not have bank deposits matured over three months
as at 31st March 2017.

R-ZE—-—NE=F=+—H " A£%010,000,0007C
AR¥E (412,462,000 0) 2 SR 1717 UL F F =
1.95%T 8. °

AEER-_Z—+F=A=+—BLEIHAA
=EAZRITER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ER 2R Blf 5
24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, RERINLSEN
2018 2017
—E-N\F I
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand RITERRFERS 67,163 26,229
Cash and cash equivalents in RERE ISR R
the consolidated statement of HERERERIT
financial position and the MRERREEED
consolidated statement
of cash flows 67,163 26,229
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and R NF=-A=+—HBARKEEFEAHM
in hand of HK$43,600,000 (equivalent to RMB34,985,000) held in CEERBEEEYRERTAFERE A
the PRC as at 31st March 2018 (2017: HK$8,990,000 (equivalent 43,600,000/ 7T (18 % 234,985,0007C A R %)
to RMB7,970,000)). The conversion of RMB denominated balance (ZZ —t 7 : 8,990,000/ 7T (48 #47,970,000
into foreign currencies and the remittance of such foreign- TARE)) - AREHBERKEREZINERZSE
currency denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are HINESHEORITEREARIPEANM 2 ER %
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange 2R B AR IMNE B IR GG LB RAIRE o
control promulgated by the PRC government.
During the year, cash at banks carry interest at market rates FARIBITZ2HESEMBHN R @SEN
which range from 0.001% to 0.35% (2017: 0.001% to 0.35%) per TR F B0.001%E0.35% M (=T —tF:
annum. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks 0.001%%0.35%)  $R1T 45 4 TF R B I M 38
with no recent history of default. AL EERENRT
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BSRHMERKR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Trade payables B 5 FETIR
- Third parties —H=7 5,656 14,703
- Related party —FERQA] 8 16
5,664 14,719
Other payables and accrued charges HMENRARESER 35,016 37,439
Accrued interest to a director NF—REFZRHFE 160 -
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost LA M A E 2 € RE & 40,840 52,158
Rental received in advance Lk 94 90
Deposits received iR E 3,913 4,063
Other tax payable Hth eI B8 56,096 57,497
100,943 113,808
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 25. BERHEbERBESR (8)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables at RZE—tFR_FT—\FZA=Z+—HAEAEEH
31st March 2018 and 2017 approximate their fair values. ESREMEMNERZEREREAABEMRS -
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FEES REMEMNBERET R —FANEESE
or recognised as income within one year or are repayable on BAEWA  RILERKEE -
demand.
The carrying amounts of the trade payables of the Group are AEBEENEFIRFZERABEIEUARBKLE
mainly denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. TCHIE
The aging analysis of trade payables based on date of receipt of RIEHER  BBRERIES AP ENESE
goods as at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RO -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Up to 90 days EPERZ90H 2,030 11,457
91 to 180 days 91£180H 13 39
181 to 365 days 181%E365H 119 -
Over 365 days 365H LA £ 3,502 3,223
5,664 14,719
26. BANK LOANS 26. TS
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZTE—L+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Bank loans, secured wITEE - BEA 14,352 102,265

As at 31st March 2018 and 2017, the bank loans were due for

repayment within one year or on demand.

R-E—tER=2F-N\F=A=+—H  R17
EEIN - FABIHHIZEREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

26.

27.

BANK LOANS (Continued) 26. RITIEE (1)
During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 and as at 31st HE_ZT—+tFR-_ZT—)/\F=ZA=+—HBZF
March 2018 and 2017, the Group was able to meet all the financial ERAERR-_Z—+HFR_ZE—NF=Z=A=+—
covenants imposed by the banks. H NEBEAMERITIRENABYBRL -
The bank loans are carried at amortised cost. IRITE FUREE A AT BR -
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contractual AREEBZRTERBENR (MEREHAXR)
interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans ranged from 3.35% to HBENFREB3.35%E3.36% (Z T —HF -
3.36% (2017: 3.083% to 4.79%) per annum. 3.03%%£4.79%) T -
As at 31st March 2018 and 2017, the secured bank loans were R_E—+F R T \FZA=+—H B
secured by (i) pledged of assets as disclosed in note 35, (i) TR 7T B ZX 0 m ()M FE35 T 55 1 & E AT - (i)
corporate guarantees given by the Company, (iii) subordination of BARNFREZATER (BB ERRE(F
the payables to the group companies owed by Time City (Hong B)AERABRER R F) Z XA ESFRIE K(v)BE
Kong) Limited and (iv) assignment of rental income from certain HETEREMERSWABNDE
investment properties.
LOANS FROM A DIRECTOR 27. EEZED
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At beginning of the year RFEA) 8,000 57,000
Repayment during the year FRNEE (8,000) (49,000)
At end of the year RER - 8,000

The loans were unsecured, bearing interest at the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate as quoted by the Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) plus 1% per annum and
repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EIEFHIE

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (a) PHRAZIEEZERBGRE:
()  Movement of each component of deferred tax assets () BEHEEEZSHLHGZE)
and liabilities
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) WMERAERGEHBRRAKRPERER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BEMBEE(BE) 28K H R
position and the movements during the year are as HEBHMT :
follows:
Revaluation Undistributed
of profits of Write-down
Deferred tax arising from: NTEEEEBERE properties Taxlosses  subsidiaries  of inventories Total
0% HEAR
ENifiE HEES AAMER HARE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T4 FET AT AT
At 1st April 2016, RZZ-EMA-R-
31t March 2017 and ZE-tE=f=1-AR
1t Aprl 2017 “I-+EmA-A (13,309 - - - (13,309
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (R) /3t A& - 14,827 (5,800) 2,361 11,388
At 31t March 2018 R-E-NEZBZ+-R (13309 14,827 (5,800) 2,361 (1,021
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) HEHBENRILREEK
position
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Net deferred tax asset recognised in iR E B 5RO 3% W3R A
the consolidated statement of BREHIBEEFE
financial position 17,188 -
Net deferred tax liability recognised in RERE B TS AR R 2R FE 3R A
the consolidated statement of RERIA B EFE
financial position (19,109) (13,309)
(1,921) (13,309)
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28. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognised

The Group has allowable tax losses arising in Hong Kong
of approximately HK$485,056,000 (2017: HK$600,471,000)
which are mainly arisen prior to the capital restructuring
in 1997, that are available for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Tax losses of HK$89,862,000 out of HK$485,056,000 was
recognised as deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$395,194,000 due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

Tax losses of approximately HK$18,891,000 (2017:
HK$58,341,000) attributable to the continuing operations
in the PRC are available for offsetting against future profits
that may be carried forward for five years for the PRC
Corporate Income Tax purpose. Tax losses of approximately
HK$39,518,000 (2017: HK$28,823,000) attributable to
the continuing operations in Switzerland are available for
offsetting against future profits that may be carried forward
for seven years for Switzerland Profits Tax purposes. No
deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of these tax
losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Withholdings tax

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which took
effect from 1st January 2008, a 5% or 10% withholding
tax was levied on dividends declared to foreign enterprise
investors from the PRC effective from 1st January 2008. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty arrangement between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign enterprise investors. On 22nd February 2008,
Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the PRC tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted
out of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31st
December 2007 determined based on the relevant PRC tax
laws and regulations are exempted from the withholding
tax. As at 31st March 2017, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of the subsidiaries amounted to
HK$54,631,000 has not been recognised as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries of the Group
in the PRC and it has been determined that it is probable that
the profits earned by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. Following
the proposed capital reorganisation and cash distribution as
set out in note 39 to the financial statements and in the view
of the improvement of the financial performance and market
condition, the directors of the Company considered that
the deferred tax liabilities of HK$5,800,000 in respect of the
undistributed profits of the subsidiaries should be recognised
as at 31st March 2018.
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28. IEIETHIA (45)

(b)

(c)

RERAZIEERESERGE

AEBBEERBEA I EZEARBE
18 #) 5485,056,000/8 T (=T — + 4 :
600,471,000/ L) * FER—NILEFER
FAMES  THAREHEBEEENAGR
R JE SR B i A o B 75 5 $8485,056,000%8 7T
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BEE °

FaHI
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R 5E
29. OTHER LIABILITIES 20. Hi&{s
The amounts represented the non-current portion of accrued ZeBAN R HEMIMIERELS -
rental expenses.
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. IRk
2017
- —E—tF
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares of shares of
HK$0.2 each Amount HK$0.2 each Amount
BREE BREE

0.2 2 0.2/8

- BERHE R LBRHEA ca|
000 ) 000 HK$000

L TE 74 N

\

Authori
At the
end 2,500,000

500,000 2,500,000 500,000

Issu id:
At the d at the end
of t

1,566,866 313,373 6,866 313,373
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31.

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS

(a)

31. RigmERHN

106 | Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (a) WBARIESHS
On 20th September 2002, the shareholders of the Company RZEBEZ-_FAAZ+H  ARARIKREHE
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the s ERES (2 _F BT
“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2002 2]  —EE _FHEREFSZENTIEE
Share Option Scheme is to encourage qualifying grantees to BERERANBODAERAR RHERREE Y
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its MR ARRNRIRERH 2EBE —TZT =
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders FRERERT M E EBARAEGHAR A5
as a whole. Qualifying grantees of the 2002 Share Option (] BT A & sk T B B A R E Rl E 8 -
Scheme mean (i) any employee or any business-related SEMEERAR R  RIEA - KRR
consultant, agent, representative or advisor of the Company EBRS sk (ii) A AN A &) s T {A] Y /B A &) s AT ]
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (ii) any supplier, agent or BB N BRI E RIS < T -
consultant who provide goods or services to the Company e o A (1) NN IS R NS 1
or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iii) any customer of EfAIEEE R R 2 EME P SiivA R alskE
the Company or any subsidiary or any affiliate; or (iv) any B AR ERHE AR ZEEB RIS
business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any BEEE,-
affiliate.
()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: () BHZHERREEDT :
Period during
Category of No. of share which share
eligible options options are Exercise Contractual
persons granted Vesting exercisable price per life of
BERAL REH Date of grant  conditions ATE share options
ZHE BREHE BRERSE BEKHE BRENER BROKE BREZGHE
Directors 8,139,075  31st March 2011 1 year from the date 30th March 2012 to HK$1.344 10 years
- Tk of grant (20%) 30th March 2021 1.34475 1T T
ZA=+-0 HREASBE—F(20%) —T-"F=A=tEHE
2 years from the date “E_-f=fA=+H
of grant (20%)
hE T A E (20%)
3 years from the date
of grant (20%)
HE LB EBR=F (20%)
4 years from the date
of grant (20%)
B A RN F (20%)
5 years from the date
of grant (20%)
HE LB SR AF (20%)
7ot o e S AR B A IR A E
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S IR B EE

31. EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued) 31

(a) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows:
(Continued)

No. of share
options
granted

B
BREYE

Category of
eligible
persons
RERAL
&

Vesting
conditions

BRI

Date of grant

REAH

. i@ fEEn (4)

(a) IEARIESH SN (68)

iy BWHZERREENAT @ (&)

Period during
which share
options are
exercisable
AT
BRENER

Exercise
price per
share

Contractual
life of
options

BRTEE BREZAXH

Employees 31st March 2011

BT

34,917,365 1 year from the date

at grant (20%)
MR A — 4 (20%)
2 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR LB R E (20%)
3 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mE T A SE=5F(20%)
4 years from the date

of grant (20%)
h A e mE (20%)
5 years from the date

of grant (20%)
m L ASERE (20%)

26th October 2011
“E——fF
+A=+x0

Director

B2

10,022,061 1 year from the date

at grant (20%)
i & A e —4F (20%)
2 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR LB HERE (20%)
3 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mE T ASRE=F (20%)
4 years from the date

of grant (20%)
MR B HEmE (20%)
5 years from the date

of grant (20%)
mEHASERE (20%)

30th March 2012 to
30th March 2021

“E-——F#=R=1H
T —§=RA=+H

HK$1.344
1,344 T

25th October 2012 to
25th October 2021

ZT-Z5+A=+HH
E2T2F

+AZ+1hA

HK$0.897
0.897/% 7T

10 years

TF

10 years

TF
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31.

(a)

(b)

EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(i)

The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

31. RigwmERNM (&)

(a)

KRR iEst 8 (5F)

(i) EBREZBERMEFHTERENT

2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
ik B2 EBREHE I EkEY =
TEE 1B
HK$ HK$
B VBT
Outstanding at the beginning A ] 14 R 17
of the year 1.344 17,099,390 1.344 20,355,020
Forfeited during the year F AR 1.344 (1,539,825) 1.344 (3,255,630)
Outstanding at the end RERK W ARITE
of the year 1.344 15,559,565 1.344 17,099,390
Exercisable at the end RERAITEE
of the year 1.344 15,559,565 1.344 17,099,390

The options outstanding at 31st March 2018 had
exercise prices of HK$1.344 (2017: HK$1.344) and a
weighted average remaining contractual lives of 3 years
(2017: 4 years).

Share Award Plan 2010

On 13th September 2010, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan 20107).

The Share Award Plan 2010 is a ten-year discretionary share
award and ownership plan. It is primarily for encouraging
or facilitating the holding of shares by those selected
employees of the Group who, as determined by the Board,
are eligible to participate in the plan and to whom new
shares are or will be awarded. The Directors will make use of
the plan to award new shares to those selected employees
of the Group on suitable terms as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the Group.

No award was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during
the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 and as at 31st
March 2018 and 2017, there was no outstanding award
granted under the Share Award Plan 2010.
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company

R §5 ER R B 5F

(a) ARXTHBAMRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN s 286,095 252,489
Current assets REEE
Other receivables ot JE YR AR SR 149 149
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREFEY 29,219 2,844
29,368 2,993
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERBE A B 5 E 13,355 13,363
Other payables H th & AR X 3,265 3,058
16,620 16,421
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (8B B2E 12,748 (13,428)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEERRBER 298,843 239,061
Net assets EEFE 298,843 239,061
Capital and reserves EAXR B
Share capital fi& 7 30 313,373 313,373
Reserves W& 32 (14,530) (74,312)
Total equity attributable FEREAATFEA
to owners of the Company Z AR 298,843 239,061

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th June 2018 and signed on its behalf by:
RZE-N\FRAZTHRESSSRBARKENE THTINEERREE

Eav Yin
B
Director

BE

Eav Guech Rosanna
B
Director

BEE
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF 32. hAGIGIEIRIAERGEIEES (58)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) RATFFKEERS
The change in the reserves of the Company during the years REBEE-_T—+ER-_E—\E=A=+—
ended 31st March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: HIEZFEHEBAQRBEZSOT -
Share
Share option  Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
BRE
R EE wE BB RitEE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1st April 2016 RZE-AFNA—H 143,310 16,688 17,524 (233,278) (55,756)
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (18,556) (18,556)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 mEUlE - - - - _
Total comprehensive loss for the year AF2EEEAS - - - (18,556) (18,556)
Transaction with owners BREALRS
Transfer to accumulated losses RERERMEEA 251 BB
upon forfeiture of share options - (2,627) - 2,627 -
At 31st March 2017 RZE—+£=F=+-H 143,310 14,061 17,524 (249,207) (74,312)
At 1st April 2017 R=Z-tEMmA-A 143,310 14,061 17,524 (249,207) (74,312)
Profit for the year AEERR - - - 59,782 59,782
Other comprehensive income Hir2EK - - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the AFZEURAE

year - - - 59,782 59,782
Transaction with owners BEBEAZRS
Transfer to accumulated losses RERELAUNGEEARTER
upon forfeiture of share options - (1,243) - 1,243 -
At 31st March 2018 R-ZE-NE=ZRA=+-H 143,310 12,818 17,524 (188,182) (14,530)
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND MOVEMENT OF
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Section 40 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the
“Companies Act”).

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with the
revaluation on properties reclassified to investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings in Note 2(g).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2(s).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve was set up upon debt restructuring which will be
used for the purpose of repurchase of issued and fully paid ordinary
share capital.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction
effective on 28th March 2007. The balance of contributed surplus
account may be utilised in the future in accordance with the
Bye-Laws and the Companies Act, including distribution to the
shareholders subject to compliance with the relevant statutory
requirements on making distributions in the Companies Act.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve relates to share options granted to
employees under the Company’s employee share option plan. Further
information about share option is set out in Note 31.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve represents accumulated gains and losses
arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments that have
been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of amounts
reclassified to profit or loss when those investments are disposed of
or are determined to be impaired.

Distributability of reserves

In accordance with Section 40 of the Companies Act, the share
premium account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

At 31st March 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to owners of the Company was HK$Nil (2017: HK$Nil)
subject to the restriction on the share premium account as stated
above.

R §5 ER R B 5F

RS ERRERGEBEE ()
Aat -
(@) B (E

(d)

(e)

Bin i BRARE - NN\ —FBRERFEFL0
D) ([RRVEDER -

EfhEE

EERBEREFT N BREREMENYRERG
BEPTES - WAREM T2(0) T BB R LI RIZFH
BRI HREE

HE 3 (A

ER RS ERE SN EBM B MKRMELNPT
BEXZRE - ZHERBMZ2)FT NG ERR
BEIE

NG

BAFENEBEAREY  BARBLOE T

BARR

AEEZBANBHRAREHRBRAR -FFLF
SA-TABERMEESRAKRZ S - BA
AR EHRARBRREARMAURARESY
A BERBRER SR ERERER TR
REDVEBR D IRHVEERE °

B

BRERBLAAEBREARRZET BEETE
ETETZBEEE ARBREZE - FTEHE
PAHIFEST

NAE#B
DA EFERBE G HEEREZ 25 WS

RER EEEREMEEkaRER  BRERE
REHEIATERE FRENSEEAS -

AT B A 6

REBEBRZERANEFEL0G ARB 2B 0% ERK
AABRAFNBO RS EFARBRR -

RIZE-—NF=ZA=+—H " XL 2BRH
HEERME  AIHIETARAFAAZHEEHR
BRATEL(ZE—+F TH) °

Annual Report 2018 111



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk). The Group is
also exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity
investments in other entities. These risks are limited by
the Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and the Group’s
credit risk primarily arises from deposits at banks and
trade and other receivables. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at banks, bank deposits with maturity over three
months and structured deposit are placed with licensed
financial institutions with high credit ratings. The
Group monitors the exposure to each single financial
institution.

For trade and other receivables, credit checks are
part of the normal operating process and stringent
monitoring procedures are in place to deal with overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amounts of trade and other receivables at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment allowance.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 20.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

(i) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(i)

R §5 ER R B 5F

33. MFHEREIR (F)

Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) BMIFEMMEBEEE ()
Liquidity risk (Continued) (i) FBESER (&)
The following table details the remaining contractual THRAaArE@EF RS HaBERRE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the KB TALRNEBE (BIEBEEREHK
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on AR RAE Z R BIFEE) - RiRE
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest HARZHRAZERFTRESTHE) RA
payments computed using contractual rates or, if ERAEEY Ny SR AHE -
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
Specifically, for loans which contain a repayment on EHE BReSAREEADERS
demand clause which can be exercised at the creditor’s GBI EREBRKRR I THERM
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow = O MBERENEEA B R
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be (BB NS 1 & 2 & REF D
required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were to invoke their BEESESH) Y EEHEZBESRE -
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate HiR T EE 2B ST EEE
effect. TR EBE -
2018
— AL
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
Carrying undiscounted less than or on
amount cash flows 2 years demand
BRARTE  ZR-FE R—FR
BHE RERBLAH PRME HEEXR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET FET FET TET
Trade and other payables 2 5 LA MR 40,840 40,840 - 40,840
Bank loans RITEE 14,352 14,352 - 14,352
55,192 55,192 = 55,192
2017
ZELF
Total More than Within
contractual 1 year but 1 year
Carrying - undiscounted less than oron
amount cash flows 2 years demand
BRARTR  ER-FR R—FR
EHE ReREen DRME FIHEKR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TR TR FET
Trade and other payables B REMEMER 52,158 52,158 - 52,158
Bank loans RITEE 102,265 102,869 - 102,869
Loans from a director BEEZER 8,000 8,000 - 8,000
162,423 163,027 - 163,027
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) IERRSIE (8)

(@) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) HMHEREE(E)

(iii)  Foreign currency risk

(iii)  SME 7 fz

Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are ERERREcRITAEMARBCE
denominated in a currency other than the functional B EB AN EMETIE -

currency of the entity to which they relate.

The Group’s exposure to currency risk is insignificant. REE 2 EBRBBTRE
(iv) Interest rate risk (iv)  F% 2z

AEEEHBBEBRTER (M
26) 7 T“Ej]Zmu@)éi%HBM&EE %

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank loans (Note 26) and loans

from a director (Note 27). EFER(MF27) 2R B
The Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk AEBEBZBRZERARN X AT

ROBE B AN T BB 2 [ oA HE & F
FREIBE o A% B I & 6] B E A

to ensure there are no more exposures to significant
interest rate movements and rates are relatively fixed.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial Eo@BEARENABE  RAE
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, and the EWEFBAITESR T ESHEER -

Group does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its debt obligations.

(i) Interest rate profile (i) A=
The following table details the interest rate profile TRFMAER ZEERARSE
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the R ZEBRFEER
reporting period:
2018 2017
“E-N\E ITtf
Effective Effective
interest rates interest rates
BERA=E EBRH =
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
FET FAET
Variable rate borrowings: AEBFRER
Bank loans RITEE 3.35-3.36 14,352 3.03-3.27 74,064
Loans from a director ESZER Hong Kong dollar - Hong Kong dollar 8,000
prime rate quoted prime rate quoted
by HSBC plus by HSBC plus
1% per annum 1% per annum
EERTET ELRTET
EEEAE RESHE
MENE1% MEME1%
14,352 82,064
Fixed rate borrowings: BEEFEBER
Bank loans RIEE NATEA - 4.79 28,201
Total borrowings BIER 14,352 110,265
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

(iv)

(i)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2018, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit before taxation for the year and increase/
decrease accumulated losses by approximately
HK$120,000. Other components of consolidated
equity would not change in response to the
change in interest rates.

At 31st March 2017, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rate with all other variables held
constant, would decrease/increase the Group’s
profit before taxation for the year and increase/
decrease accumulated losses by approximately
HK$821,000. Other components of consolidated
equity would not change in response to the
change in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the beginning of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2017
has been prepared on the same basis.

Sensitivity analysis on bank balances, bank
deposit with maturity over three months and
structured deposit is not presented as the
management of the Group considers that the
Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuation is
insignificant.

R §5 ER R B 5F

33. MFHEREIR (F)

(a) HMHEBREE(E)

(iv) FIEE R (&)

(i)

FRE DT

R-Z—NE=ZR=+—0 14
STERFREFHEIE M RE100
EE2 - MAAAEMERREZ
BRT  BEHEREEFANMH
Al AR gk RIE I8
o,/ 8 A #3120,00008 7T © R A
Bz HMl o U REEH s K
[EHE S E -

RZT—+F=ZA=+—8 &
AR 2B IR 10018 &

ZBERT - BEREEEFAR
Bi Al R Rk BT E
90 > #9821,0005 TT © 4R
EREme Hp DRI R &
f2 1R 4 5 o

ERGEED T ZEE T RFA
ERHENMERNEE I E
BZEHERRE AR KFEN
TR XA SN ZERTEZA
@ B2 o %1001 & & 2 18 nsk
BATVEREHEEET —FE
BEHZHEAN TR 2 E
YHo-pREBRE_ZT—tF=A
=T AL FEFBRER 2 G
EAOMERBRELERE -

HRAEEEERERRAEEM
mEZFEEBRRMTRE
M IRITAS BB RAa=
BAZETERREREFRE
S BURRE DA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to owners
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and appropriate.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total equity. Net debt is calculated as
bank loans and loans from a director less bank deposits with
maturity over three months, structured deposit and cash and
cash equivalents as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Total equity comprises all components
of equity. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting period were as follows:

o1 ¥ E IR E IR (4])

(b)

BhERER
AEEEREAZARRBRERAN ZER

BRI A MBI B ‘iﬁLfEM%ﬁ&HﬂK

HREZSERTHRTHEAZE®R - BBER
BeRARESRERABHEZEAR  EHEE

EREARERE BERM - NEEHUER
RABIEEZIEN  BBXNERE - #T
M RETHESIBELREEE - KT
HERENER -

AEBAEEL R (BRFEERAGRA
) ERESER - BFEERRT
ERREFERRINFEB=@EA 2RTT

TR BBEEFNREeRREEFEM NS
B IEIRRA KRR - BEZEREM AR
» e AREEERFE—BERENEERE
HE KT e RARE R RIERLLEMAT ¢

2018 2017

—E-N\#F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FETL

Bank loans (Note 26) R1TE 8 (K t26) 14,352 102,265

Loans from a director (Note 27) ER2ER(H727) = 8,000

14,352 110,265

Structured deposit (Note 22) EEMETER (fa222) (12,462) -
Bank deposit with maturity over FIE R =8 A 2 R1TF ;R

three months (Note 23) (Hii#23) (12,462) -

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)  #I)& : ]R& BRI & S EW (H1:124) (67,163) (26,229)

Net (cash)/ debt (R&) BB FE (77,735) 84,036

Total equity BFERSE 502,773 429,832

Gearing ratio fBE =R NA 19.6%

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from trading
of listed securities classified as trading securities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The sensitivity
analysis has been determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk.

At 31st March 2018, if the quoted market prices of the
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would increase or decrease by HK$119,000.

At 31st March 2017, if the quoted market prices of the
trading securities had been 20% higher or lower while all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit before
taxation would increase or decrease by HK$141,000.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of

financial position

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement

date.

R §5 ER R B 5F

o B IR E IR (4])

(d)

RREBRAEDZARBHE

IEEMABIAS AhE - BET
EUEESE  THEA
W%wﬂ AR EH B
LG Ryl e U L
S48 2 B4R T2 £ LT b BT A AR A B
SRR RSB -

E—MAEE AR
BBIE - BVCE &
BEMNERTIZZ

%mﬁ

e  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level o E_LME:AABEEFERELH
2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet B AR EBREBREEINEF R R
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. WARFBRAERTABE 28R - 7]
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data BR O BBERAMBSHEBILNERZ
are not available. BiE -

e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using e F-fHHE: ARBEFREFEAEAT
significant unobservable inputs. AERZ HiE -

The Group has a team headed by the finance manager NEFEERHMGKEIBEE BB ST
performing valuations for the financial instruments, including BHITHE - BF Ajﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁ?& S BE R
available-for-sale investments and structured deposit, which WA HHERERGERBEEFR  UERAARE
are categorised into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, ERWD EE—RHNEER éa%‘f c ZEBEE
and trading securities which are categorised into Level 1 MEEVEENSZEETMRE - GFEAF
of the fair value hierarchy. The team reports directly to the HMFEEREEH  ZERSREEBEAR
chief financial officer and the audit committee. A valuation BEHHLMHEERS YHERFUBEE
report with analysis of changes in fair value measurement is TEZAAE - BEUEENSEZEESY
prepared by the team at each interim and annual reporting HENBENERGFETMA W > HEE7
date, and is reviewed and approved by the chief financial HHRERH -

officer. Discussion of the valuation process and results with

the chief financial officer and the audit committee is held

twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.

2018 2017
ZE-N\F Bt
Quoted
prices Significant Significant Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
REEBHSE  EAUBE EAFUEE E BT EAUBE EALAUEE
ZHE BARE BARE ZHE LN 6 BRI
(%—-#%) (E=#&) (B=8) Xl F—1) (B=®) (B=#%) Fok
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value ~ BEMARE
measurements iE
Assets &E
Structured deposit HEEEER - 12,462 - 12,462 - - - -
Available-for-sale ey
investments BE - 7,707 - 7,707 - 6,550 - 6,550
Trading securities BHEE 715 - - 715 703 - - 703
Total ok 715 20,169 - 20,884 703 6,550 - 7,253
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W FSERRBAE

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of
financial position (Continued)

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers between in Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost such as bank deposit with
maturity over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and
bank and other borrowings are not materially different from
their fair values as at 31st March 2018 and 2017 because
of the immediate or short term maturity of these financial
instruments.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values financial
instruments.

i) Trading securities

Fair value is based on closing bid price quoted in an
active market at the end of the reporting period without
any deduction for transaction costs.

ii)  Available-for-sale investments

Fair value is determined by reference to the bid
price quoted in the second hand market without any
deduction for transaction costs.

i) Structured deposit

Fair value is determined by reference to the discounted
cash flows which are estimated based on foreign
exchange rate observable at the end of reporting period
and contracted interest rates, discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of the counterparties.
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33. MFHEREIR (F)

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S IR B EE

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. ESABHREALTRS
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its FRNAEEEAEBEATBUTZIRS
related parties:
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEIBASHM
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AEFFEBEEABHH  BEIXNFAA
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and AESEkATESHFAL (WK E10ATHE)
certain of highest paid individuals as disclosed in Note 10, is 2RI
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Short-term employee benefits EHRERERA 12,921 13,374
Post-employment benefits RIKEEF 36 4
12,957 13,415
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note e EEe st ATE TRA] (RBEE(D)) °
9(b)).
(b) Financing arrangements (b) RIFETHE
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Loans from a director BEEZER - 8,000
Accrued interest (Note) R F B (K aE) 160 -
160 8,000
Note: /Iﬁu:jtr B
()  As at 31st March 2017, Mr. Eav Yin, a related company 0] R-E—tFZA=+—8 HLxLEE
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by FREBEERIGLCAAEFHOMBREER
Mr. Eav Yin and the Group entered into netting arrangement, 7 RAEBEFRREEE NS B b
pursuant to which these parties agreed to set off the total MLE R E RIS E SR B 5
balances of HK$1,268,000 owned by the related company with SZ W E RN R HE R B 42 £4%81,268,0008
the accrued interest payable to Mr. Eav Yin. IT e
(i)  The accrued interest is included in “trade and other payables” (i) ZEFAFNEREEGAVBRRAERNIES
to the consolidated statement of financial position. REMBEMERR] -
Details of the repayment of the loans repaid during the FERNEEEZHENEAMBREN 27+
years are disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial BEE o
statements.

AE T WA ) Annual Report 2018 [119



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

87t ¥5 ¥R 2R i 5
34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. EABHEATRR (8)
(c) Other transactions (c) Hihxx5
2018 2017
—E2-N\F T —tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5 FHETT FET
Sales of watch movements to HEFHEET
a related company ultimately BLAEZFREHERR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin Bk S 2
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin —ERAERA] 1,696 31
Provision of subsidised advertising REEEEHR
and marketing support to two MZHERESLIE
related companies ultimately THCREZTRERER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin Rt 1= o e )
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin Z ERER 7 (i) 1,207 2,437
Leasing of offices and warehouses to HEWRAERBET
three related companies ultimately BLCAEZTFREER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin K51 S
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin Z =B R T (if) 2,285 2,134
Purchase of products from two MG CEEZFREES
(2017: one) related companies ultimately & 151 5 4 42
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin Z WEREER A
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin (ZZT—tF: —H)
FREE = (iii) 222 126
Consultancy fee paid to two (2017: one) YNEEREFTHLCEL
related companies ultimately BEIREHEAR
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin 51 dc R
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin Z MEREE R A
(ZZ—+tF: —H) 1,639 1,270
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Other transactions (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Provision of subsidised advertising and marketing
support services

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017,
the Group participated in the marketing programs
and activities for promoting and enhancing the
image of branded watches supplied by the related
companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav
Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin. In return, the
related companies subsidised the Group by paying an
advertising subsidy to the Group.

Leasing of offices and warehouses

During the years ended 31st March 2018 and 2017, the
Group leased an office and warehouse space to three
related companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr.

Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin.

As at 31st March 2018, commitments under operating

R §5 ER R B 5F

34. BAEMEBEALRS ()
(© HZS(E
R
() HR O S5 B R T 10 S R AR R
REE-—T—LER-F—\FE= A
S+ AR ARESEHS
CREBTREEA RIS LR

B BAE QAR 2 TS HE R AT 8 SO
& - DRE MG R F MR - 1

SR 2 R AR S B SN E S RS
ERENAEH -

(i) HEMLAEREBE
RBE_ZT—+tFR-_ZFT-N\F=A

z+—H¢¢F%ﬁ AN = E B
Afﬁﬁﬁﬁm%%fﬁié%wﬂ
WA RGBS = M=

RZEBE-NF=A=+—RH RELK

leases receivable from the companies over which EHESHNBW AR (BBCEEET
ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and x,\%ﬁ&EﬂThﬂ ek ek | /N DR
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin were as follows: KA AGELN R ¢
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Not later than one year R—FR 1,578 1,457
Later than one year and BR—FRTHBBRE
not later than five year 434 1,180
2,012 2,637

Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ranging
from 0.25 to 3 years (2017: 0.25 to 5 years) and related
commitments are included in Note 37.

MEMEERERN T0.2523F (=
T—+F 0.2585%F) MIEAAR ZE
BRI FES7 ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R #5 ¥R R B 5F

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 34. SAEMEATRE (@)

(c) Other transactions (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii) Purchase of products

(c) Efth3x5 (&)
Wit (&)

(i) KBER

The Group purchased of products from the related RZBE—+FR_FE-—NF=ZA=+—
companies ultimately owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin H JJ:¢ HE - AEBRBLCEEE
and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin during the years ended FTREEBRGLCEEESNNBEER
31st March 2018 and 2017 which represented watches, ARBEMEETFE FHREAZH
watch spare parts and components (including watch TR (BIEFEES) « EEE G
movements), watch accessories and packaging. The ke - REBINMMFE&EE - T
Group also outsourced watch assembly, processing LREBRYE H Pl FEE AR
and after-sales services such as maintenance and ENEE REEMBEZERBED
repairs to these related parties. The purchase of ERARKE -

products includes the fees and charges for these

services.

(d) Balances with related parties

(d) BIEALTLER

2018 2017
—E-N\E ZE—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and other receivables due from RGBT EEE T
three (2017: three) related companies BREERGLCEERES 2
ultimately owned by the =EEZE—tF: =FH)
wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled FERRE 5 R EMERR
by Mr. Eav Yin (Note) (HiaE) 7,198 3,874
Trade payables due to a related ERBCEEZFTRESR
company ultimately owned KRIGIREESLZ
by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and —EREERRE SRR
controlled by Mr. Eav Yin 8 16
Note: /WEEC B
As at 31st March 2017, Mr. Eav Yin, a related company ultimated R=ZF—+tF=A=+—H BLCAEETFER
owned by the wife of Mr. Eav Yin and controlled by Mr. Eav Yin and BERGLCRERHN—BRERR REAKHE
the Group entered into a netting arrangement, pursuant to which RN FREE S B J:?;%??H%KT%E
three parties agreed to set off the total balances of HK$1,268,000 FEMES I B S Z B N R R A AR SR
owned by the related company with the accrued interest payable to 1,268,000/ 7T °
Mr. Eav Yin.
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35.

36.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. BERD
The assets pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group were REBEBETRTEEEBEENT :
as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Land and buildings T RETF 11,901 14,045
Prepaid lease payments HEENRIEAE - 16,535
Investment properties BEME 227,180 251,162
Inventories FE 43,322 81,814
282,403 363,556
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 36. SREIRMSIRI Rt 2
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme AEBEMERBAERETIRY — BRI
for all Hong Kong eligible employees. The assets of the MPF B ([aEe])5tEl - ZaBEeTal s EERA
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds EEyEESDFAFE  AXRAUESHAEE -
under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefit cost for MPF scheme charged to the MirEBmRPNRBRTE S5 8 7R KB FIAK
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents contributions A MRER A B IRR A S 588 BIET BH A 3K
payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the B R e TSR e
rules of the MPF scheme.
Employees employed in the PRC are members of the state- ErEZEZEINBEREGTZEKGEKE -
sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC government. ZENRSFTERPREBNER - AEEAERET
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of their FeraTHol  RKFTEIEHER - AEH
payroll to the pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only EZBRANFE R ZEME  ERIEFTEIZ RTEEDL
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension scheme is to HECe
make the required contribution under the scheme.
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37.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessor

Property rental income earned during the reporting period was
HK$8,754,000 (2017: HK$7,914,000). At 31st March 2018, the
properties held have committed tenants for lease terms from 0.25
to 7 years (2017: 0.25 to 7 years), whose tenancy agreements
include paying security deposits.

The Group had total future minimum lease receivables under the
non-cancellable operating leases with the tenants falling due as
follows:

37.

LEHEMRE
fERWiAE

RS HBME 2 EE e KA &8,754,000%
T (ZF—+tF:7,914,00087L) - R=_F— N\
FZA=+—0 FRFEZVECERRTEEN
TO25F R7F (Z T —+EF : 0.25F27F) 2 M
W BEEEHERREINERRZS -

AEBRBFEBRA L 2 A BEHEEMELN - K
R EEUE AR PERAT

2018 2017

—B-NF —E—t%

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHETT FET

Not later than one year TiE@—F 8,328 7,622
Later than one year and not BE—F R ERTF

later than five years 15,034 21,587

More than five years BB F - 627

23,362 29,836

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail stores
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from 0.75 to 9 years (2017: 0.5 to 9
years). Certain rentals for the use of retail stores are determined
by reference to the revenue of the relevant retail stores for the
year and the rentals for certain retail stores will be escalated by a
fixed percentage per annum.

The Group’s lease obligations primarily consist of non-cancellable
leases of office and retail store space. Future minimum payments
under non-cancellable leases were as follows:

ER\iESE

ARBRBELAERHARETHAENER
T 54 - EEE 2 MR EBR AT EE
x4 055 E0F) (ATFEERNE
SEUKEE AR T EERORASORTE - 1
AZFEEEMHOEL S U EENEFEE -

AEBEMNEEEREERETAREIMAE
ZEBHERE-RETCIRBEEE 2 RRKEN
R

2018 2017

e —E—tf

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Not later than one year THB—F 84,568 86,005
Later than one year and not Bl —F R TERAF

later than five years 224,768 276,408

More than five years B AT - 15,264

309,336 377,677
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R §5 ER R B 5F

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH 38. LoBPRmsSEN:
FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing (a) ERESEHEENGEZEHE
Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAVAEERMESHELENEE L E
arising from financing activities, including both cash and B pREREEIReEE ARETHE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities EMNEEIRERECLIARBESRES
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will SENEHBSEERERERADEAKRE R
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of cash BEPzBHeREZEE -
flows as cash flows from financing activities.
Interest
Interest payable
payable for loans
Bank Loans from for from
loans'  adirector bank loans a director Total
P RAT EitES
BITEE EBZER BERE ERAE @t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 31st March 2017 and RZZE—t&=A=+-HK
1st April 2017 —Z—+ENA—AH 102,265 8,000 306 - 110,571
Changes in financing cash flows BERETEZE
Proceeds from new bank loans RITHEEMERE 92,898 - - - 92,898
Repayment of bank loans BERITEE (181,873) - - - (181,873)
Repayment of loans from a director ~ EBEEZZ &5 - (8,000) - - (8,000)
Interest paid ERFIE - - (1,967) - (1,967
Non-cash changes FHEEH
Exchange adjustments B 3 392 1,062 - - - 1,062
Interest expenses FEHX - - 1,745 160 1,905
At 31st March 2018 RZE-NF=ZA=1+—H 14,352 - 84 160 14,596
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

i) Proposed Capital Reorganisation and Cash Distribution
out of Contributed Surplus

Pursuant to the board resolutions passed on a board
meeting held on 11th May 2018, the directors of the
Company proposed a capital reorganisation (the “Capital
Reorganisation”) as follows:

(@) Share Consolidation

Every two issued and unissued shares of the Company
will be consolidated into one consolidated share (the
“Consolidated Share”).

(b) Capital Reduction

Immediately upon the share consolidation as stated in
(a) becoming effective, (i) the issued share capital of
the Company will be reduced by cancelling the paid
up capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.20
on each of the then issued Consolidated Share such
that the par value of each issued Consolidated Share
will be reduced from HK$0.40 to HK$0.20; and (ii)
the authorised share capital of the Company will be
reduced by reducing the par value of all Consolidated
Shares from HK$0.40 each to HK$0.20 each resulting
in the reduction of the authorised share capital of
the Company from HK$500,000,000 divided into
1,250,000,000 Consolidated Shares to HK$250,000,000
divided into 1,250,000,000 shares of par value of
HK$0.20 each.

(c) Capital Increase

Immediately upon the Capital Reduction becoming
effective, the authorised share capital of the Company
will be increased from HK$250,000,000 divided into
1,250,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.20 each
to HK$500,000,000 divided into 2,500,000,000 new
shares.

(d) Share Premium Account Reduction
The amount standing in the share premium account

of the Company of HK$143,310,000 as at 31st March
2018 will be reduced to nil.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

i)

ii)

Proposed Capital Reorganisation and Cash Distribution
out of Contributed Surplus (Continued)

(e) Transfer of Credit to the Contributed Surplus

The entire amount arising from the Capital Reduction
of HK$156,687,000 and the Share Premium Account
Reduction of HK$143,310,000 will be transferred to the
Contributed Surplus to enable the application of the
necessary amount in the Contributed Surplus to set off
against the accumulated losses of the Company and to
make a distribution.

Subject to the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective
and the setting off the accumulated losses, the Company’s
board of directors proposed to make a cash distribution
at HK$0.0128 per share (equivalent to HK$0.0256 per new
share) (the “Distribution”). The Distribution will be made
out of the Contributed Surplus, as enlarged by the Capital
Reorganisation. The Distribution is subject to, among other
things, the Capital Reorganisation becoming unconditional
and effective and the passing of the relevant resolutions by
the Company’s shareholders at the special general meeting
to be held at 3rd July 2018.

Acquisition of a Property

On 1st June 2018, a subsidiary of the Company (the
“Subsidiary”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(the “S&P Agreement”) with an independent third party (the
“Vendor”) pursuant to which the Subsidiary agreed to buy
and the Vendor agreed to sell a residential apartment located
in London, the United Kingdom (the “Property”) at a cash
consideration of £3,000,000 (approximately HK$31,230,000)
for investment purpose. The acquisition was completed on
15th June 2018.

R §5 ER R B 5F

39. HEHIESFIA (M)

ii)

EERASHERTMARBERELRES
i (48)

() WEIAHBEZHAZS

% 7<% 12 156,687,0005% 7T & il
RO EERMEEZ2BREFREA
143,310,000 TR @B R =M AR
B DAAFTBRA R 2 TR RERE
HHARAZ RFEEEUREL DI o

ERASEHEB RN EHEEZEBENRR
T ARAESERBEURSEL S EER
i 170.01287% 7T (1055 1 & AR ¥ % 70.0256
BIL) ([PIR]) - DIREERBARE (KR
ARBHBERE) BRED - DIRERF (AR
) IRAEMER AEGERER  RAQF
BREER=ZZE—N\FLAZHRITZERER
AAE LBEBEMAERRE  HEIEE-

U Ed T %

RZZE-N\FRA—H  ARFZMBAF
(IZMErR)) E—2BTE=0 (&
AVEEmS ([EEMHAD - B - %M B
AEIREBEMESRASHE —HUNEE
RE2EELAE ([ZWEDERERS
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40. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2018.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of Share-based

HKFRS 2 Payment Transactions’

Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
10 and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*
(2011)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from

HKFRS 15 Contracts with Customers’
HKFRS 16 Leases?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement?

HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
28 Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS  Transfers of Investment Property’
40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28’

2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?

2015-2017 Cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

FNEE SR CR
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40.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018 (Continued)

The Group’s assessment of the impact of these new standards
and interpretations is set out below:

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

The new standard addresses the classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities,
introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets. The Group has decided not to adopt
HKFRS 9 until it becomes mandatory on 1st January 2018.

The Group does not expect the new guidance to have a significant
impact on the classification and measurement of its financial
assets as the Group’s equity investment is insignificant.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities.
The derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and have
not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of impairment
provisions based on expected credit losses (“ECL”) rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS 39. It
applies to financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at a fair value through other comprehensive
income, contract assets under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, lease receivables, loan commitments
and certain financial guarantee contracts. The Group assess that
the adoption of HKFRS 9 will not have material impact to the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected
to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of
the new standard. HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1st January 2018. The Group will apply
the new rules for the financial year beginning on 1st April 2018.

40.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for recognition of
revenue. HKFRS 15 will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts
for goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers
to a customer. The new standard permits either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining when to recognise revenue and how much revenue to
recognise through a 5-step approach:

(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;

(2) Identify separate performance obligations in a contract;

(3) Determine the transaction price;

(4) Allocate transaction price to performance obligations; and

(5) Recognise revenue when performance obligation is satisfied.

The core principle is that the Group should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
It moves away from a revenue recognition model based on an
“earnings process” to an “asset-liability” approach based on
transfer of control.

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in Note
2(r). Currently, revenue from sales of goods are recognised in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss at the point of
sale to customers or when the Group has delivered products
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

The directors of the Company, based on the results of an initial
assessment, consider that the new standard does not have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on
or after 1st January 2018. The Group did not adopt the standard
before its effective date.

130] Asia Commercial Holdings Limited

40. #E_F—/\EF=A=+—BILFECifh

BREBZIEIE - TR IFCIGEEEE
N E (8)

BEBMBHREENFIS RIRAFFEN 2]

BTS2 RERK R RMIER - FE
Eﬁ‘%iﬁ%/ﬁ,ﬁ‘l £155 IR BB &5t ERIF 185
FIREEBHEREY REHRBHNaHNREES
STEAISS PR EERMRES IMRTE - L
Al RAITTERRA R E SRS H ZEH 2 8
ETEPRER - FEAFRATRENAE
& BT BT EE -

BB IR ELERFE155REL — (H2 HmIER
3830 T {8 27 5% 75 ) By W AR AR B EEE DU

(1) BRAESEL
@ BREHRHNEBENHEL
@) EBERPER
(@) "EXZFEBRZROAELE X
(6) REXBHEERERUA -

200 R I 73 A 5 B FE i AR MRUA. - DA I 4% R BR K
SEBEHERURBENEEMmIRE 2 REHN
SHEAEPBERXZETERAMR - IEREER
[EFERE ] MR AEREEERERZEHEER
MmIBEE —aEITE-

AER B 0 W R FE AR BRI MY sE2(n) Y BE - IRBF 2R B
AEPHEEmOHI G  ITREEHETE
FERAEERERXNEPMEFEEXTER
i B& I 4 flE £R 48 B B U SRR AT A MR BB - AR
BRBERNMER -

ARBEEREVTAEER
B BRREBEAZE -

" R RIS AR

MEMVAE-ZE-\F—A AR 2&MABH
BIRFEERRGIER o ARBEREAERA B A
RERAZER -

F‘H:i N

=
e
i



40.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

Under HKFRS 16, lessees are required to recognise a lease
liability reflecting future lease payments and a right-of-use asset
for all lease contracts in the statement of financial position.
Lessees will also have to present interest expense on the lease
liability and depreciation on the right-of-use asset in the income
statement. In comparison with operating lease under HKAS17,
this will change not only the allocation of expenses but also the
total amount of expenses recognised for each period of the lease
term. The combination of a straight-line depreciation of the right-
of-use asset and the effective interest rate method applied to the
lease liability will result in a higher total charge to profit or loss
in the initial years of the lease, and decreasing expenses during
the latter part of the lease term. The new standard has included
an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of
low-values assets. This exemption can only be applied by lessees.

The Group is a lessee of certain retail shops which are currently
classified as operating leases. The Group’s current accounting
policy for such leases, as set out in Note 2(h), is to record the
rental expenses in Group’s consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the current year with the disclosure of related future
minimum lease payments as operating lease commitments (Note
37). As at 31st March 2018, the Group’s total non-cancellable
operating lease commitments amounted to HK$309,336,000.
The new standard will therefore result in the increase in right-
of-use assets and increase in lease liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, as a result, the annual rental under otherwise
identical circumstances will decrease, while depreciation of
right-of-use of assets and interest expense arising from the
lease liabilities will increase. Given that the total non-cancellable
operating lease commitments account is significant as at 31st
March 2018, the directors of the Company expect that the
adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting
policy would result in significant impact on the Group’s financial
position. The Group will apply this new standard for the financial
year beginning on or after 1st April 2019.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

40.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEWRHRHS

For the year ended 31st March 2018 #HE—-ZT— \F=ZA=+—HILFE

RESULTS E 45

Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1t—HLEE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-mMF ZT-HF ZE-—RF ZT—+tF ZB-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET Fi&T FET FET FET
Revenue EEUA 967,353 718,580 834,394 850,218 991,429
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AR (B1E) (152,990) (34,973) (35,625) 31,104 53,003
Income tax PS5t (196) (54) (53) - 9,935
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEWRAN S (FiE) (153,186) (35,027) (35,678) 31,104 62,938
Equity attributable to FER
owners of the Company RABRBA (153,278) (30,936) (35,678) 31,104 62,938
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR AR R A 2 92 (4,091) - - -
(153,186) (35,027) (35,678) 31,104 62,938
Basic earnings/(loss) per share &R EREAR]  (FEIE) (11.21)¢ 2.11)¢ (2.28)¢ 1.99¢ 4.02¢
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES aENalE
As at 31st March
R=H=+-—AH
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—ZpFE —Z-FFE T -RF —_T-kF —_B-N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FEr FET FET
Total assets wEE 840,152 731,979 704,830 687,746 656,705
Total liabilities BwaE 433,672 320,743 299,055 257,914 153,932
Net assets BEFH 406,480 411,236 405,775 429,832 502,773
Equity attributable to BERARF
owners of the Company BAEAZEDR 396,679 411,236 405,775 429,832 502,773
Non-controlling interests FEAE A% P R M 9,801 - - - -
Total equity B TR 406,480 411,236 405,775 429,832 502,773
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